SUTHERLAND SHIRE JUNIOR CRICKET ASSOCIATION INC.

2002 - 2003



46th ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT

SUTHERLAND SHIRE JUNIOR CRICKET ASSOCIATION, INC.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the FORTY SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the above Association will be held at the Cricket Administration Centre, Caringbah Oval on Tuesday 17th June 2003 at 8.00pm sharp.

BUSINESS

- 1. Read and confirm minutes of the Annual General Meeting of 18 June 2002.
- 2. Apologies.
- 3. Welcome Visitors.
- 4. Annual Report & Financial Statement.
- 5. Election of Executive and Ordinary Members.
 - a. President
 - b. Vice President (Development)
 - c. Vice President (Planning & Marketing)
 - d. Secretary & Public Officer
 - e. Finance Manager
 - f. Competition Manager
 - g. Representative Cricket Manager
 - h. Registrar
 - i. Assistant Secretary
 - j. Assistant Manager (Representative Cricket)
 - k. Promotions Manager
- 6. Election of Auditor
- Such other business as may be brought forward within the rules of the Association.

Michael Mooney Secretary. 33 Dolans Road, Cronulla. NSW 2230 Phone:9527 2881



MARINE PRODUCT MARKETING PTY LTD

ANNUAL REPORT & YEAR BOOK

SUTHERLAND SHIRE JUNIOR CRICKET ASSOCIATION INC.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 2002/03

PRESIDENT Mr. Peter Smith

VICE PRESIDENT (Development) Mr. Greg Thomas

VICE PRESIDENT (Planning and Marketing) Vacant

> SECRETARY/PUBLIC OFFICER Mr. Michael Mooney

COMPETITION MANAGER Mr. Tom Croucher

FINANCE MANAGER Mr. Ray Brennan

REPRESENTATIVE CRICKET MANAGER Mr. John Dyson

ASSISTANT REPRESENTATIVE CRICKET MANAGER Mr. Rob Maloney

> REGISTRAR Mr. Terry Chalmers

ASSISTANT SECRETARY Mr. Ian Connor

PROMOTIONS MANAGER Mr. Peter Risby

OTHER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

DELEGATES TO AFFILIATED BODIES Mr. Michael Mooney (SSCA & NSWDCA) Mr. Ray Brennan (SDCC & NSWDCA)

> AUDITOR Mr. Matthew Duff



SPONSORS OF THE SSJCA.

The Association expresses its appreciation to the following organisations and companies who have contributed to the support and advancement of junior cricket within the Sutherland Shire.

> MARINE PRODUCT MARKETING Harry & Carol Peters (Co-directors)

- KINGSGROVE SPORTS CENTRE Harry Solomons (Director)
- CALTEX
- SPORTSGIFT (GYMEA)

The SSJCA also acknowledges the support and co-operation of:

- SUTHERLAND SHIRE COUNCIL for providing quality sporting facilities for our junior cricketers.
- BP GARAGE, KIRRAWEE (Cnr Oak Rd and Princes Highway) in providing a central collection point for match results throughout 2002-03.

The SSJCA invites organisations and commercial enterprises interested in supporting junior cricket in the Shire through sponsorship of SSJCA activities to get in touch with the Association Secretary in the first instance.

MARINE PRODUCT MARKETING PTY.LTD

" SUPPORTING COMMUNITY AWARENESS FOR YOUTH ACTIVITY IN SUTHERLAND SHIRE"

PROUDLY SUPPORT

SUTHERLAND JUNIOR CRICKET ASSOCIATION

SUTHERLAND GRADE CRICKET CLUB

LOOK FOR OUR QUALITY SEAFOOD PRODUCTS AT YOUR LOCAL WOOLWORTHS & FRANKLINS SUPERMARKETS



PART II - EXECUTIVE, FINANCIAL & CLUB REPORTS.

PRESIDENTS REPORT

We have now reached the end of the cricket season - my first as President and it is time to reflect on what has been achieved throughout the year.

Our main aim is to provide a cricket competition for boys and girls of the Sutherland Shire and help them develop their skills. This year we had around 1100 players registered in the under 8 to under 16 competitions. As with a number of other Associations this is a decrease from previous years and something we are looking at addressing. One way of doing this is to look at our competition structure. There is a committee of club volunteers currently looking at a structure for next year's competition, taking into consideration input from the ACB, NSW Cricket, Educators and a joint study by NSW Cricket and Newcastle University. Their recommendations will form important input into the competition offered next season.

We also had around 300 children learning basic cricket skills through the Have-a-go programme and I would like to thank the volunteers at Gymea, Bosco-Engadine, Aquinas and Illawong who make these programmes possible. One of our challenges is to bring these children into the SSJCA competition.

In developing our players' skills we have run joint gala days with the Grade Club and thank them for their support. The Grade Club has also provided opportunities for some of our 16A cricketers to play a few games of grade cricket to help them progress to the next stage of their cricketing careers and once again we thank them for this initiative.

Cricketers are also helped in their development by having opportunities to play at a higher level through representative cricket. We had teams in each of the age groups this year and also provided other opportunities through the President's Competition. Nine of our players went beyond representative cricket and joined Emerging Blues Squads. Three players were selected from our Watson Shield team in the City U17 squad for NSW.

This year the ACB and The Australian Institute of Sport chose our Association to provide a number of older fast bowlers to be involved in a "SPOT" study on spinal injuries caused by an excessive bowling workload. Each player was evaluated for action and medically for injury. They also had to maintain accurate bowling records throughout the season so their actual workloads could be determined. 28 of our players completed all the requirements and will be given individual analyses of their bowling to help them improve performance and reduce injury. A full report will be available to the SSJCA later in the year. I would like to thank Steve Mulally who did a marvelous job co-ordinating this programme for the SSJCA – without his persistance the programme would not have been as valuable.

To run any cricket competition takes a lot of volunteers. I would like to thank all those people who assisted in club administration, coaching, managing, scoring, umpiring and setting up grounds each week – many will have put in lots of hours throughout the season.

I would also like to thank the Umpires Association who provided umpires each week and for the representative matches – your assistance is much appreciated.

Thank-you also to our sponsors – Harry and Carol Peters and Marine Product Marketing, Harry Solomons and Kingsgrove Sports Centre and Caltex – please support the companies who support cricket in the Shire.

I would also like to thank my hard working committee who have worked tirelessly to make sure our competition runs smoothly throughout the year.

Peter Smith.



SECRETARY'S REPORT

They were:

Congratulations to Caringbah Sports for winning their 14th Club Championship and to Jay Davis from the Engadine Dragons club who is the 2002/03 SSJCA Cricketer of the Year.

Player numbers for season 2002/03 were down slightly on last season but down significantly on the numbers achieved in the 1999/2000 season. The committee has attempted to address this situation during the season and to this end a number of review committees were established to examine any underlying factors for this decline.

Their findings and recommendations have been presented to the committee. The Australian Cricket Board released their junior cricket policy in November 2002 and this document together with the recommended competition guidelines prepared by Cricket NSW will need to be considered in conjunction with the recommendations of our own reviews and the needs of cricket in the Shire into the future.

Some changes have been implemented this season. There may well be some further changes adopted for the new season.

I can report that the actual running of cricket in the Shire has been successful. There were five new faces on the committee this year & they brought with them a variety of background knowledge of cricket and their input to the successful administration of junior cricket has been most innovative. Thank you gentlemen.

I made the statement last year that the administration of cricket by the SSJCA should be and was open and transparent. This ideal has, I am pleased to say, been continued by this seasons committee. I recall an old saying along the lines "the more things change, the more they stay the same!" - the policies of recent SSJCA committees were succinctly stated by one of the Association's club coaches 25 years ago (and are still equally valid today). He wrote:

"My long term aims this season were to get managers, parents and players to satisfy my personal coaching ideals.

- (1) to provide ENJOYMENT for everyone involved
- (2) to create in everyone a greater interest in the sport while expanding each individuals knowledge of the game, and
- (3) to keep the game in PERSPECTIVE, by emphasising the MORALITY of the game to both parents and players"

If we can get to the end of each season and, by whatever yardstick, can say that we have achieved these aims then we have been successful.

During December we hosted a touring team from the South African club Old Parktonians. They played our Weblin Shield team and they were a very competitive team. It was a very entertaining day with Old Parks winning by the odd dozen runs. Thank you to the Weblin team – you were a credit to the SSJCA both on and off the field. Thanks also to Kerry Richards & Tony Trudgett, the parents who billeted the boys and assisted with the successful running of the day. Thanks also to Harry & Carol

Peters at Marine Product Marketing for the burgers & chicken kebabs, the apparel for the players and to Les Davison thank you for your contribution.

"While on the subject of ambassadors for the SSJCA, we wish to extend our thanks and appreciation to all the players (and their parents) who volunteered to assist the ACB/AIS in their SPOT fast bowling research project. Congratulations gentlemen - all the comments I have received in relation to your participation, attitude and behavior have been positive and glowing.

THANKS AND APPRECIATION

SPONSORS

- Marine Product Marketing Harry & Carol Peters for your willingness to assist this Association at every available opportunity
- Kingsgrove Sports Centre Harry Solomons for your generous contributions to our representative costs and for the award for our cricketer of the year
- Sportsgift at Gymea Brad Morris for assistance and generosity throughout the year
- > Caltex for your ongoing support

ASSISTANCE

- Sutherland Shire Council to John Gordon and Kirin East for your assistance throughout the year and to Stephen Bourke for your guidance in local matters. The level of assistance cricket (and all other junior sporting associations) receive in this Shire is remarkable and should not be taken for granted.
- Cricket NSW and the staff at Community Cricket. Thanks to Russel Grimson for his involvement in our development programs ranging from Have-A-Go, in-service and coaching courses

ASSOCIATIONS

- Sutherland District Cricket Club, to Brett Johnson, David Givney and Tom Iceton. The liaison between the juniors and the Grade club has definitely improved over the past two seasons and we look forward to a continued development in the links between us.
- Sutherland Shire Cricket Association, Leon Bunker and Noel Taplin 1 have enjoyed the year being the delegate from the juniors and have definitely benefited from the experience. To Leon who is standing down as President after eight years in the role (& 23 years on the committee!) congratulations on a job well done and enjoy your pursuits away from cricket administration.
- Sutherland Shire Cricket Umpires Association Bill Rigby and Syd Edwards for your efforts throughout the season and to the umpires who stood during the season at club and representative levels. To have official umpires at all Finals is greatly appreciated.
- NSW Districts Cricket Association to Jeff Evans and John Boulous thank you for, among other things, another successful Inter-Association competition for the juniors. We wish you every success in next season's centenary celebrations for the NSWDCA and look forward to participating in your proposed activities.

Any success in the running of cricket is directly attributable to the army of volunteers from the clubs. To all the coaches, managers, scorers and supporters of all the teams - thank you for your continuing support for the junior cricketers in the Shire.

Thank you to the club secretaries for your co-operation and assistance in getting all the messages to the right people at the right times.

Thank you to all the members of the committee this season for the time and effort you have put into making the season flow as well as it has. Personally, thank you Ray Brennan for your guidance and wise counsel.

Michael Mooney

CODES OF BEHAVIOUR

It is perhaps appropriate at this time to include some comments around the Codes of Behaviour developed by the Australian Sports Commission's 'Active Australia' initiative and which have been adapted by the ACB in their Junior Cricket Policy to reflect their views of the principles and spirit of cricket in Australia.

At page 27 of the ACB policy document "Australians are justifiably proud of the place sport has in their daily lives. However what is equally important to all of us involved in cricket is the way the game is played and the manner in which our athletes conduct themselves. Unfortunately, some people fail to live up to the traditional values of spirit of cricket. Young people can be easily influenced and negatively affected by these adverse experiences." The committee of the SSJCA fully endorse this statement.

As one of the custodians of the game and its values in the Shire, the SSJCA will be considering for inclusion in our Regulations the various Codes for Coaches, Umpires, Players and Parents as has been promulgated by the ACB. When combined with the "Spirit of Cricket" set out in the preamble to the Laws of Cricket (2000 Code), it may go some way to ensuring that the words written by Donald Bradman over 50 years ago (in his book "Farewell to Cricket") will still be true 50 years hence:

"Without doubt the laws of cricket and the conduct of the game are a great example to the world. We should all be proud of this heritage which I trust may forever stand as a beacon light guiding man's footsteps to happy and peaceful days."

The principles and behaviours carved during these formative years will be carried through to all facets of life. An illustration given in the inspiring verse of Sir Henry Newbolt, ('Vitae Lampada'), of a schoolboy cricketer who grows up to become a soldier fighting in Africa. In the panic of battle he is stirred to heroic action by a schooldays memory of cricket.

There's a breathless hush in the close to-night Ten to make and the match to win A bumping pitch and a blinding light, An hour to play, and the last man in. And it's not for the sake of a ribboned coat. Or the selfish hope of a season's fame, But his captain's hand on his shoulder smote "Play up! Play up! And play the game!"

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR SEASON ENDED 31St MARCH 2003

RECEIPTS	s	\$	EXPENDITURE	\$	S	s
Accounts Rendered for Season			Presentation Night			
- Playing Fees	29,160.00		- Annual Report	1,705.00		
- Fines	75.00	29,235.00	- Trophies / Presentations etc	3,316.15		
			- Other	578.05	5,599.20	
			Representative Cricket			
Interest Received	1,322.84		- Balls	3,108.00		
Sponsorships	3,108.00		- Umpires	3,325.00		
			- Photos	1,872.00		
Contributions by Affiliates :			- Uniforms	11,112.20	19,417.20	
- DCA - Umpires Fees	2,450.00		General Expenses			
- SSCUA - Affiliation	20.00		- Phone, Fax, Postage	976.32		
- SSCA - Wickets	4,607.50		- Computer Expenses	1,634.49		
- SSCA / SDCC - Insurance	500.00		- Stationary, Printing, Copying	71.25		
			- Clinics - Coaches, Umpires	3,582.08		
			- Score Books	2,629.00		
Representative Levies	12,980.00		- Honoraría	2,500.00		
Sales of Clothing	1,515.00		- Honourboard Update	132.00		
			- Kevin Everson Appeal	500.00		
Clinics - Coaches / Umpires	2,760.00		- Life Members Badges	498.30		
			- NSWDCA Centenary Dinner	650.00		
Amounts Owing From Last Season	190.00	29,453.34	- Floral Tributes	260.00		
		58,688.34	- Replacement of Synthetic Wicket	9,215.00		
			- Participants Insurance	9,942.08		
			- Grant - Boys Town	3,000.00		
			- Miscellaneous	806.10		
			- Touring Team Expenses	782.40	37,179.02	62,195.42
Balances as at 1st April 2002			Balances as at 31st March 2003			
- Cheque Account	37,232.90		- Cheque Account / Chatland Trust	32,482.21		
- Fixed Deposit	33,997.00	71,229.90	- Fixed Deposit	35,240.61		67,722.82
	Sectorements -	129,918,24				129,918.24

9

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31ST MARCH 2003

LIABILITIES			ASSETS		27
Provision for Additional Expenditure			Bank		
- Trophies and Engraving	4,000.00		- Chatland Trust)		
- Annual Report	3,000.00		- Cheque Account)	32,482.21	
- Presentation Night	500.00	7,500.00	- Fixed Deposit	35,240.61	67,722.82
			Stocks on Hand		
Chatland Trust Corpus		250.00	- Ties	500.00	
			- Clothing and Balls	1.850.00	2,350.00
Accumulated Funds					
Balance - 1st April 2002	66,719.90		Fixed Assets		
Operating Deficit	(4.397.08)	62,322.82	- Storage Cabinet	ALL	
			- Photocopier	FULLY	
			- Computer Equipment	DEPRECIATED	
			- Fax Machines		0.00
		70,072.82			70,072.82

We declare that the books and supporting documents have been checked and in our opinion the above statements present a true and fair view of the affairs of the S.S.J.C.A. Inc. as at 31 March, 2003.

M. R. Duff (Honorary Auditor)

R. C. Brennan (Finance Manager)

VICE PRESIDENT (Development)

The Associations efforts to provide a program of development was quite broad and covered, Introductory Cricket for the U8 and 10C competition, Have a Go Cricket and two skill development days.

The first development day was for children in the U12, 14 and 16 age groups. This development day was conducted at Caringbah Oval in conjunction with the Sutherland District Cricket Club and focused on the basic skills of batting, bowling, fielding, running between wickets and wicket keeping. The assistance of these players and club officials (especially Bob Manning and Tony Clark) was greatly appreciated.

The second development day was for the junior players in the U8 and 10 age group. This development day was run by Steve Mulally of the Bosco Cricket Club and other senior coaches from the Association. The skills focussed on were batting, bowling, fielding and running between wickets. The assistance of Steve Mulally and the other coaches was greatly appreciated.

In review, the development days were a success and it is planned to undertake more targeted development days in the future.

Greg Thomas.

HAVE-A-GO CRICKET

Aquinas

Everyone had an enjoyable time at Billa Rd, we had 75 participants this year the most we have ever had, batting, bowling, catching, fielding was in abundance.

The boys that helped out this year did a great job, to Michael and David Smith, Paul Drake, James Gill, Matthew Richardson and Pat Evans a great big thank you on a job well done and handled with great maturity, believe me when you've got 15 -20 hyped up kids to look after it is no mean feat to be able to impart the knowledge and skills of cricket on to them.

Also to Peter and Mary who were always there to lend a hand or offer some friendly advice to a mischievous girl or boy who were causing mayhem and get them back into the swing of things -Thank You!

To the Mums and Dads -they will be back next year for more social interaction! Thanks to all for many fond memories and good laughs over the years and good luck to next years Coordinator.

Tom Sommerville.

Engadine

The Engadine District Have-a-go Centre was active again in the 2002/2003 season based at Boys' Town Fields, Engadine. Again this season the centre was coordinated jointly between St. John Bosco and Engadine Dragons Cricket Clubs in an extremely successful arrangement.

We had 20 registered participants - including just one young lady - who turned up each week on a Friday afternoon to learn a little about our great game with the primary focus being involvement and fun. The Engadine District Centre wound up just before Christmas with a most enjoyable Barbecue and "Presentation Afternoon".

The success of this Centre can be attributed to the assistance we had from players from both Bosco and Dragons Clubs - Dom Worton, Ben Marciante, Andrew Jones and Ben Latham gave freely of their time each week to assist the other coaches from both Clubs who were available each week. Thanks also to lan Latham from Dragons for his invaluable help during the season as Assistant Co-ordinator.

Steve Mulally Centre Co-Ordinator.





CLUB REPORTS

AQUINAS COLLEGE CRICKET CLUB

End of another enjoyable season of cricket for Aquinas fielding 8 junior teams and 3 senior teams, with great success for our senior B4 team who were premiers. We also had increased participation through our "Have A Go" program with record 75 boys and girls enjoying Friday evening cricket. Next season we should have a vast increase in our junior numbers. I would like to extend thanks on behalf of Aquinas College Cricket Club to all the coaches, managers, scorers and parent helpers as without their help there would be no cricket and I'm sure the players had a very enjoyable season.

We also thank the Association for all their hard work and dedication throughout the season and look forward to 2003/2004 season.

Mary Richardson. Secretary

CARINGBAH SPORTS CRICKET CLUB

With what began as a frustrating season in terms of fielding full teams, ended with the achievement of being the Association's Champion Club. The decline in players has been strongly felt by all clubs and the recruitment of players will be a major challenge over the next few years. The Club Championship was the result of many consistent performances throughout the season and demonstrates the club's great depth of talent.

Sports would like to thank the Association, all clubs and teams for providing the opportunity for our youth to play cricket in a well organised and competitive environment. Congratulations go to all Premiership winning teams, in particular the Sports 12D team who remained undefeated throughout the season, and our 14A and 10B1 teams who reached the finals.

As with all clubs, the voluntary efforts of coaches, managers, scorers and team helpers keep us going. Special thanks to these people. The Sports committee has once again worked very hard and deserve high praise for their efforts. In particular, Karen Bowmer, a long serving member of the Sports committee, Association committee member and recorder, is retiring this season. Karen has made major contributions to cricket during her long involvement.

All of us look forward to a revitalized competition next season.

Glen Stelzer. President

COMO JANNALI CRICKET CLUB

A successful year for our club, again fielding 10 teams including one Sunday U/8 team. Player numbers were stable for us this year, contrary to the trend apparent across junior cricket in Sydney and elsewhere. We also had a healthy number of Have-A-Go applicants and we look forward to rebuilding our Preliminary and Introductory player numbers next year.

MAIL ORDER SERVICE ANYWHERE IN AUSTRALIA AND THE WORLD

FAX: 61 - 2 + 9683 5263

E-mail: kscwestside@bigpond.com.au

FAX: 61 - 2 + 9502 4503

E-mail: ksc@kingsgrovesports.com.au

Three Como-Jannali teams made the Finals this season, with the 16C team winning their premiership and the 16A and 12C teams becoming runners-up. Como-Jannali finished 4th in a very close Club Championship competition which was not determined until after Round 10, and our congratulations to Caringbah Sports for claiming that title.

Como-Jannali was well represented across a number of representative teams this season, having 16 players selected in SSJCA teams competing in the Watson, Weblin, Moore, Gee and Creak Shield and U/14 Presidents Competitions, and 4 in the Green Shield teams selected by Sutherland DCC and Sydney University, in the U/21 Poidevin-Gray team for Sydney University and also in 4th and 5th Grades for the Sutherland DCC. Congratulations to those players for their hard work and dedication, and their success at these levels of their sport.

My personal thanks to the members of the Como-Jannali executive for their efforts over the year, to our coaches and managers, and also to the parents of all our players for providing support, encouragement and not least transportation for their kids and for keeping our club strong and moving forward. I also wish to thank my fellow members of the SSJCA Management Committee for their commitment to junior cricket and junior cricketers in the Shire, and the enthusiasm with which they approach the roles they each perform.

lan Connor. Secretary

DE LA SALLE SEAGULLS CRICKET CLUB

In its inaugural season the De La Salle Seagulls Junior Cricket Club fielded six teams in SSJCA competitions, comprising one Under 10, two Under 12, two Under 14 and one Under 16. The club was formed by the merging of the former De La Salle and Cronulla Seagulls junior cricket clubs.

The merger has been most harmonious both on and off the field with players and parents from the former clubs getting behind the new merged entity. This was due in no small part to a shared philosophy of putting enjoyment of the game ahead of other considerations. Although no teams reached the finals all experienced success through the season and turned in some excellent performances. A number of players also represented the district in Shield and grade teams.

The club wishes to congratulate Caringbah Sports on winning the Club Championship and to thank all members of the SSJCA Committee for the many hours of work they put in throughout the season to ensure its success. We look forward to the start of an equally enjoyable season of cricket next September.

Lann Dawes. Secretary

ENGADINE DRAGONS CRICKET CLUB

This season saw an upturn in our registrations with the Club fielding ten Dragon's and two Bosco Dragon's teams. For the first time in our club history we entered joint teams

into the SSJCA competition. I would like to thank the committees of both Engadine and St John Bosco for their efforts in giving these players the opportunity to play. Needless to say we appreciate the consideration given by the SSJCA.

Four sides were successful in making the finals, the 16A (minor premiers), 16B, 12A and 10B (minor premiers) teams. Congratulations to our three premiers, the 16A, 12A and 14B sides. Special mention must be made of the effort of our 16A team that have secured back to back 16A Premierships, this feat has only been achieved on a handful of occasions.

After finishing fifth in the Club Championship in 2001/02 we improved our position to third with good performances across our grades. Congratulations to the SSJCA Grading Committee for providing a well balanced and closely fought competition. Congratulations also go to Caringbah Sports on winning the Club Championship and to all the Premiers of their respective competitions.

Nineteen Dragon's players were selected in SSJCA representative teams this year with a further two representing the Sutherland Grade Club in the Green Shleld competition. We would like to commend them, and all representative players on their fine achievement.

Thank you to all players, coaches, managers, scorers, supporters and committee of the Engadine Dragons Cricket Club for your efforts this season.

Finally, thank you to the Management Committee of the SSJCA for your hard work during the year, which resulted in an excellent competition.

lan Latham. Secretary.

GYMEA BAY CRICKET CLUB

Celebrating our 50th Anniversary, Gymea Bay fielded 7 teams in the 2002/03 season, down by 2 on last year. Only 1 team, the 16C's were Minor Premiers, but unfortunately lost the Final.

In terms of success on the field, this was not our best year. However, all players should be proud of their efforts. A highlight was the selection and participation of Kate Owen in the Australian Under 19 Women's Cricket Team. Gymea's first Australian Rep!

Thank you to all our coaches, managers, scorers and supporters for your efforts during the year. In particular, a big thank you to Andrew Shepherd for his efforts in coordinating the very successful "Have A Go" cricket centre at Gymea Bay Oval, on top of coaching his own team.

Thank you to the Committee of the Gymea Bay Cricket Club for your hard work during the year, and to those who regularly attended Club meetings.

Congratulations to all premiership winners, to Sports for winning the Club Championship and to the SSJCA Committee for your time and effort in running this year's competition. Finally, thank you to all the players for the way you represented the club throughout the year. We hope you enjoyed your cricket, and hope to see you back again for a bigger and better 2003/04 season.

Tony Dale. Secretary

ILLAWONG MENAI CRICKET CLUB

The Illawong Menal Cricket Club this season fielded a reduced number of teams over the prior season in the 2002/2003 season.

I'd like to congratulate everyone who was involved with Illawong Menai Cricket Club this year, you have all put in a great effort. I really hope you've enjoyed yourself, made new friends and learnt new skills- about cricket and being part of a team.

We had 6 teams in the finals, 14A's, 14B's, 12A's, 12B's, B3 & B9. Congratulations to the 12B's, 14A's & the two senior teams who were premiers. Well done on a great effort guys.

Have- A- Go once again ran on Friday nights thanks to the hard work of Kerry Myers and his teams of helpers. It will be great seeing some of these young stars playing a more structured game in the coming years.

As in any organization, it is the dedication and commitment of those involved which makes our club successful. The coaches, managers and members of the committee have all tirelessly put in an uncreditable amount of time and energy. Without them, it would not have been possible to have teams on the field each Saturday. I would like to thank all of you involved.

Ground development has been slow this year. The new nets at Casuarina will be completed within the next few weeks; we anticipate that once these are operational we'll hold training sessions with our bowing machine. Vin Sharkey, our coaching coordinator, has been holding these training sessions already at Illawong Public School for a part of this season, which has proved to be very successful and enjoyable.

Fifteen of our players finish their juniors this year; congratulations and thank you for your support over the past 6 or 7 years, we hope you will join a team in the seniors and continue to enjoy your cricket.

Rod Aggett. President

LOFTUS CRICKET CLUB

I would like to thank the SSJCA executive committee for the running of another successful and enjoyable season of junior cricket.

Loftus were once again able to field two teams, both in the U12 age group, it was a difficult start to the season with only 15 players available when registrations were due, with the help of the Association and also Engadine JCC we were able to find the few more players needed to make up the numbers. Loftus would like to thank those that were involved in obtaining these extra players, this type of co operation is what junior sport is all about, giving the kids an opportunity to play, to learn and become better people for the experience.

As a club our teams had a mixed season with the 12C side starting slowly and eventually putting some very good performances together, Bruce Legge and Brian Kember did an excellent job of developing a group of very inexperienced kids into a team that believed that they could not just play the game but compete with the best of them as well.

The 12D team on the other hand had been together for four seasons and were a very confident team, having won the 10B final the season before, they enjoyed a very successful season, losing only two premiership rounds, both to Caringbah Sports, the eventual premiers after a mighty tussle in the grand final.

. To the coaches and managers of our teams, thank you for a job well done

Once again, congratulations to the SSJCA and club executives on a successful and enjoyable, see you on the park again next season.

Dave King. President

MIRANDA MAGPIES CRICKET CLUB

The Magpies had another successful season, with three of our teams finishing minor premiers, and two eventual premiers. This season saw the club register seven junior sides, an increase of two teams on last season. We fielded two Under 16 sides, three U/14's, one U/12 and one U/10 side. This was our first under 10 side for several years, and is seen as a very important inclusion for our club as these youngsters are the future of the club. Hopefully we can reverse the worrying trend of fewer kids playing the great game of cricket.

Our 16A's showed much promise early and we had high hopes for the season, however whilst competitive they never figured in the top sides.

The 16C's had a great season, winning seven of their ten games. Unfortunately that was not enough to make the final and so had to settle for third.

Our three Under 14 sides all finished minor premiers, a brilliant effort considering that there was only four grades in the age group. We won the 14B and 14C comps and were runners up in the 14D grade. I wonder if any club has ever been so successful in the one grade before. Our Under 12's had a good year, learning the finer points of the game. They played in the B grade and had several good wins.

The Under 10's were all first time players and so had to play on Sunday mornings. They really enjoyed their season and hopefully they will be back next season.

All in all, another good year for the club.

The committee and members of the Magpies would like to thank the committee of the SSJCA for all their assistance and hard work throughout the year.

Glen Lord. President

ST JOHN BOSCO CRICKET CLUB

The 2002/2003 season saw Bosco field 7 teams in the SSJCA Competition, including two "merged" teams with the Engadine Dragons Cricket Club. The decision to allow this arrangement to proceed was both visionary and successful, ultimately providing 24 boys the opportunity to have a game of Cricket they may have otherwise missed out on. Congratulations and thanks to the Association for their fair-minded handling of this issue.

On the field Bosco was successful in the U10A competition, being both Minor Premier and Premier in their Grade. I should mention that this is the first ever 10A Competition Bosco has ever won. Congratulations to St.Patricks' Cricket Club who finished Runner Up on the day in a very even contest. We were also successful in finishing Premiers in the Under 10C Competition - a wonderful achievement. Our other teams were competitive in their respective Grades, and achieved some outstanding results. Congratulations also to the Bosco Players who achieved Representative Honours with the SSJCA this season.

Congratulations to Caringbah Sports for their success in the Club Championship this year - we nearly caught you in the end! Similarly, congratulations to the other successful teams who won their competitions.

This season Bosco undertook a major upgrade of its training facilities. This work could not have been done without the invaluable financial assistance of the SSJCA and the SCA, along with the NSW Department of Sport & Recreation. On behalf of the Bosco Cricket Club, please accept our thanks for your support.

Finally, a huge thank you to all of the players, Coaches, Managers, Scorers and "taxl drivers" for making this season another successful one. Last but not least to the Association Committee who managed the Competition in a very professional manner - well done.

Steve Mulally. President

ST. PATRICKS CRICKET CLUB

Season 2002/03 has been another good year tor St Patrick's Cricket Club with two teams registered for each competitive age and one team in the Under 8's. Each age

group was represented in the finals with the 14D and 16B teams taking out their premierships.

Congratulations to those teams as well as everyone who participated just for the enjoyment of competitive sport. I would like to thank all those who volunteered to help the Club -coaches, managers, my fellow committee members, Warren Daley and Dave Corry, and others who assisted in any way.

I would also like to pass on our thanks and appreciation to all members of the Association committee and congratulate them on a season well run.

Peter Simpson. President

SYLVANIA HEIGHTS CRICKET CLUB

Sylvania Cricket Club started the season with all new faces on its Committee ready for an exciting year. With some valuable guidance from members of the outgoing Committee the club worked hard to make this an enjoyable year.

Like so many clubs this year, Sylvania experienced a reduction in team numbers with five teams competing this year compared to seven the year before.

Whilst team numbers were down the club performed well in getting two of our five sides into the finals, our 14C's and 12C's. The 12C's were victorious in their final whilst the 14C's were runners up.

If participation and enjoyment were a measure of a clubs success then Sylvania have had an outstanding season. The enjoyment displayed by our boys and their parents this year was immense. Whilst some sides struggled and others excelled the smiles on the faces of all those involved with the club were always there to be seen.

Again Sylvania was a significant contributor to the Sutherland junior representative teams with seven boys being selected to represent the Shire. Congratulations and well done to those boys.

Our club survives on the dedication of all those who assist in so many ways. To you all, the Committee, coaches managers, scorers, drink sellers and parents, we thank you for making this a fun and enjoyable year.

Tim Butler. Secretary

PART III - THE SSJCA COMPETITION.

TROPHY	AWARD	WINNER	CLUB	
THE BERTSHELL TROPHY	Club Championship	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
JOHN WOODHOUSE MEMORIAL TROPHY	Cricketer of the Year	JAY DAVIS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	16A
CLIFF PADDY MEMORIAL TROPHY	Representative Individual Achievement Award NSWDCA	CHRIS WILLIAMS	WATSON SHIELD	
ALAN WARD MEMORIAL TROPHY	Best Representative Team Performance NSWDCA	WEBLIN SHIELD		
THE HARRY PETERS TROPHY	Representative Individual Achievement Award Presidents XII	GRAEME HINDS	UNDER 14	
THE PETER SCHOFIELD TROPHY	Best Representative Team Performance Presidents XII	U16		
S.D.C.C. TROPHY	Best Performance 14A	AARON MALL	CARINGBAH SPORTS	14A
ALAN CRASTON MEMORIAL TROPHY	Best Performance 12A	ALEC JUDD	CARINGBAH SPORTS	12A
ANDREW HILDITCH TROPHY	Best Performance 10A	BRETT JOHNSON	GYMEA BAY	10A
THE CHATLAND AWARD	Best Association Batting Performance Traditional Cricket U16/U14	JAY DAVIS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	16A
THE JIM LYNCH TROPHY	Best Association Batting Performance Traditional Cricket U12/U10	CHRIS BAMBURY	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	12C
THE STAN STEED TROPHY	Best Association Bowling Performance Traditional Cricket U16/U14	GREG INGS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	14B
THE BRIAN QUINN TROPHY	Best Association Bowling Performance Traditional Cricket U12/U10	ADDISON GRINHAM SHANE TE PATU	ST. JOHN BOSCO SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	10A 12C
THE BILL LAWLER TROPHY	Most Catches U16/U14 Traditional Cricket	SEAN BLAKE	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	14C
THE JACK RUTTY TROPHY	Most Catches U12/U10 Traditional Cricket	MATT SMITH MARK SALTZMANN SAM WESTWOOD	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS ILLAWONG MENAI COMO JANNALI	10A 10A 12C

21

COMPETITION MANAGER'S REPORT

For me, in my first year as Competition Manager, the most positive feature of the many games that I saw was the obvious enthusiasm and enjoyment displayed by the players. This was clearly demonstrated in the positive and aggressive style of batting, and the enthusiasm of the fielders. The style of cricket played by the Australian Test team is obviously being copied by coaches and players. On the other hand I am concerned by the number of injuries that players are experiencing at the game and at practice, both on and off the field. This must present a challenge to coaches to ensure a safer environment and to equip all players to meet the situations they may face in a game. However, there is also a challenge to all parents and by-standers to intervene before off-field games or behaviour result in the predictable mishap.

The major challenge facing the Association and all clubs is the decline in the number of players involved in Cricket in the shire. Four seasons ago there were 155 teams, while last season there were 97 teams, a drop of 37% over three years. As a result of this the SSJCA has set up three committees to meet over the next couple of months to consider all the issues and to determine strategies to reverse this trend. I encourage all clubs and supporters to be actively involved in this process and to positively support the changes introduced for next season.

To all players may I encourage you to not only to enjoy the game and to play to the best of your ability but also to play in a manner of good sportsmanship out of due respect to the game, your opponents, the umplies, your team, your club, your family and those who have made it possible for you to be a part of the game. This spirit has been demonstrated recently in the 16A Final when Brody Harwin of Como-Jannali 'welked' when a fielder indicated that he caught the ball cleanly. Likewise, in the semi-final of the World Cup, Adam Gilchrist brought great credit to himself, his country and the game when he 'walked' in similar circumstances. We all benefit if this spirit is encouraged.

May I also encourage all clubs to continue to encourage all coaches, managers and parents to put good sportsmanship, honesty and fairness foremost in their thoughts and conduct so that everyone may enjoy and be attracted to our game and our clubs.

On behalf of the SSJCA committee and the players I would like to thank Sutherland Shire Council for the provision and maintenance of more than 50 sporting fields for our use on Saturday and Sunday mornings. At no expense to SSJCA they performed extensive ground improvements to Grays Point, North Caringbah, Gwawley East and Kareela South. All fields used in the finals were mowed and maintained shortly before the finals. The support of the local community through our Council is very much appreciated.

Finally I would like to thank the Committee of the SSJCA and the representatives of each club for their support, encouragement and patience. It is this good spirit among all those involved in this great game that makes the many hours of work so rewarding. I would like to especially thank the three recorders Terry Chalmers. Anthony Smith and John Worton for collating results after each game and getting them to me quickly so that results were available to clubs shortly after each round.

Tom Croucher

CRICKETER OF THE YEAR - JAY DAVIS - ENGADINE DRAGONS 16A

This prestigious award caps off a fabulous season and impressive junior career for Jay by finishing as the Shire's leading junior player.

Jay first showed his ability with the bat during the 1996/97 season as a member of the premiership winning Illawong 10A side where he scored 319 runs for the season at an Association record average of 79.75. He scored the only century in 10A's that season (127 not out)

He was selected in the Foster Shield representative team that year and his consistency at this level has been demonstrated by his selection in every SSJCA representative team of his junior career.

He was back in prominence in the 2000/01 season by having the best Association batting average in 14A's (53.17 scoring, again, 319 runs including one innings of 103). This season also saw Jay emerge as a quality "all-rounder" in the Moore Shield representative team

The statistics for this season (525 runs at 58.33 including 2 centuries (135no, 101) and a 89, 18 wickets at 11.89 -also taking 5 for 25 in the final, and 7 catches) reflect Jay's outstanding performance as well as emphasising his all round ability.

As well as being a member of the C S Watson Shield team, Jay was a member of the A W Green Shield team for 2 years. This season he excelled and his efforts were rewarded with selection into the Combined No.1 Green Shield team. In recognition of his outstanding representative season he was invited to trial for the metropolitan NSW U/17 team in which he made the last 30, only just missing out on the final squad of 24.

Jay also got the opportunity to play grade cricket for SDCC and played a number of games in 5th grade this season (after being called up to play in 4th grade the previous season).

I have coached Jay for the past four seasons and have had the pleasure of witnessing first hand how hard he has worked to attain the level of play that he displays today. He has made significant contributions to the premiership winning Engadine 14A's in 1999/00 and the back to back 16A premierships last season and this season

This was Jay's second season as captain of his Engadine club team and his efforts both on and off the field have proved successful. Jay led by example, his enthusiasm helped to lift the other boys knowing that their captain was keen to do well. His close in fielding and catching was, at times, inspirational.

He set the example with the results he achieved and deserves every bit of success that comes his way. Jay is a player that every coach wants in his team with his enthusiasm and dedication to the game. A team player that always enjoyed the success of his peers and has a good relationship with all the players.

Jay's natural ability cannot be questioned – the statistics and results from Under 10's to now are testimony to that. The success that Jay has achieved this season comes from his dedication, application, team commitment and support combined with a diet of junior cricket at a club & representative level, men's cricket, grade cricket school cricket and the training

hours that are required for all of these. It is his commitment to the game along with a lot of hard work and sacrifices that have resulted in this accolade being awarded.

Congratulations Jay and may future cricketing successes come your way.

Stuart Slack.

BEST PERFORMANCE 14A - AARON MALL - CARINGBAH SPORTS

It is no surprise that Aaron Mall is the Association's 14 year player of the Year this year. He has the technique, concentration and understanding of the game to go with his natural ability.

This season Aaron developed into a genuine attacking fast bowler. He complements this talent with an increasing ability with the bat and his fielding is exceptional

Aaron's cricket took a fair step forward in the season just finished. He developed a genuine fast ball which he uses selectively to support his stock line and length deliveries. He also bowls a good second spell all about control and containment and a lot of his 27 wickets for the season came in the second spells.

As well, Aaron's statistics with the bat show a very successful season. Always a batsman that could "stick", Aaron developed size in the last year or so and has become more aggressive to the fuller ball, as well as scoring a lot of runs from bowling that started middle stump and drifted to leg. But in becoming more affirmative in his batting, he did not forsake technique. Caringbah Sports got a lot of value from getting Aaron to the crease earlier than he has batted previously in his career and he proved that he had capacity to dominate good bowlers early. Eight innings for 325 runs at an average of 65 tells its own story

Congratulations to a good and popular cricketer who is a true all rounder.

BEST PERFORMANCE 12A - ALEC JUDD - CARINGBAH SPORTS

Two years ago Alec won this award for the 10A competition – what a fantastic effort to again win it for the 12A's! There were a number of fine players in the 12A competition but Alec's statistics show that he thoroughly deserves this award. He scored 399 runs at 39.9, captured 19 wickets at 5.5 and took 6 catches.

Alec was also the captain of his team and for someone so young, his knowledge of the game and his leadership qualities were outstanding. He led from the front and always offered words of encouragement to his teammates. There were many games where he ran the team by himself in the field with little input from the coach.

The highlight of Alec's season was his 92 and 5/20 against eventual Premiers Engadine in Round 5. With Alec's concentration, his ability to play all the strokes, as well as his excellent shot selection, he will not have to wait too long for his maiden century.

Alec's bowling showed that you don't have to bowl quickly to take wickets. He consistently attacked the stumps and kept the ball up. He even developed a slower ball which I'm sure he won't overuse next year.

Alec's fielding was inspirational. Alec set the example in the field.

Congratulations Alec, from your coach, your team mates and all members of Caringbah Sports Cricket Club. Continue to enjoy the game and to play it in the right spirit - further success will naturally follow.

BEST PERFORMANCE 10A - BRETT JOHNSON - GYMEA BAY

This award reflects the outstanding season Brett has had for Gymea. His exceptional results can be put down to Brett's natural talent for cricket, combined with his hard work and willingness to learn at training and his sheer enjoyment in playing the game.

Brett scored 243 runs this season and was one of the few batsman in the 10A's who was developing a genuine batting technique. He worked hard on his game and by the end of the season he had the ability to play shots off both the front and back feet and on both sides of the wicket. His 243 runs came in an abundance of drives and pull shots and it was his ability to concentrate for long periods of time at the crease that allowed him to score so many runs. An off-drive he hit for four against Illawong was a highlight of the season for his coaches.

Brett has special all round skills and he also took the new ball for Gymea. He was one of the fastest bowlers in the competition, but it was his control of the new ball and his consistency in bowling at the stumps allowed Brett to get a number of early wickets cheaply. Brett's first spell would usually pick up the team early wickets and he would always have less runs than overs bowled next to his name. Brett was also a more than capable fielder with a powerful arm and a safe set of hands.

Brett was a team player and his friendly spirit gained him admiration from his team mates and the opposition. Brett is a type of person who you love to coach and his enthusiasm rubs off on everyone around him.

SSJCA REGISTRARS REPORT 2002/03

Below are details of registrations accepted by the SSJCA for 2002/2003

	TEAM NUM	BERS	PLAYER NU	MBERS
Registered Clubs	2002/03	2001/02	2002/03	2001/02
Aquinas College	8	10	99	118
Barden Ridge		2		26
Caringbah Sports	12	12	142	146
Como Jannali	10	10	119	123
Cronulla Seagulls		3		39
De La Salle		6		71
DLS Seagulis	6		73	
Engadine Dragons	12	11	148	123
Gymea Bay	7	9	87	111
Heathcote		2		24
Illawong Menai	14	18	170	204
Loftus	2	2	21	24
Miranda Magpies	7	5	86	67
St. John Bosco	5	7	56	85
St Patrick's	9	10	110	121
SSJCA Girls		2		24
Sylvania Heights	5	7	60	89
TOTAL	97	116	1,171	1,395

		PLAYER NU	PLAYER NUMBERS				
	Age Group	2002/03	2001/02	2002/03	2001/02		
	Under 8	38	0	4	0		
	Under 10	250	352	20	30		
	Under 12	342	396	28	32		
	Under 14	309	359	26	30		
	Under 16	232	288	19	24		
		TOTAL 1,171	1,395	97	116		

Terry Chalmers.

16A RESULTS SUMMARY

THE J. A. DALEY SHIELD

	2002/03	CLUB	CHAMPI	ONSHIP
--	---------	------	--------	--------

CLUB	POINTS
CARINGBAH SPORTS	134.45
ST. JOHN BOSCO	132.75
ENGADINE DRAGONS	130.50
COMO JANNALI	130.30
ILLAWONG MENAI	129.79
ST. PATRICKS	116.44
AQUINAS COLLEGE	106.50
MIRANDA MAGPIES	98.71
GYMEA BAY	95.75
SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	90.50
DLS SEAGULLS	88.14
ST. JOHN BOSCO - DRAGONS	61.33
LOFTUS	52.33

GRADE	TROPHY	CLUB
16A	THE J.A.DALEY SHIELD	ENGADINE DRAGONS
16B	THE FRED MALBON MEMORIAL TROPHY	ST. PATRICKS
16C	THE KEN WHATLEY TROPHY	COMO JANNALI
14A	THE JOHN BANNON MEMORIAL TROPHY	ILLAWONG MENAI
14B	THE JOHN MOODIE SHIELD	MIRANDA MAGPIES
14C	THE KEN GARDNER MEMORIAL TROPHY	MIRANDA MAGPIES
14D	THE GORDON THOMSON TROPHY	ST. PATRICKS
12A	THE TED WYKES TROPHY	ENGADINE DRAGONS
12B	THE MORT EDSON TROPHY	ILLAWONG MENAI
12C	THE TYNAN MOTORS TROPHY	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
12D	THE IRENE RUTTY MEMORIAL TROPHY	CARINGBAH SPORTS
10A	THE RON HILDITCH TROPHY	ST. JOHN BOSCO
10B	THE KEN PRENDERGAST TROPHY	ENGADINE DRAGONS
10C	THE WALLY CROUCHER TROPHY	ST. JOHN BOSCO

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
Engadine Dragons		7				3			40
Como Jannali		7				3		-	40 40
Caringbah Sports		7	1.1.1			3	-		39
DLS Seagulls		5				5			32
Illawong Menai		3				7			24 16
Miranda Magpies		1				9		0	16

Note: Competition points were deducted in this grade for breaches of Regulations.

Premiers	Engadine Dragons		
Minor Premiers	Engadine Dragons		
Batting Aggregate	Jay Davis	Engadine Dragons	525
Batting Average	Jay Davis	Engadine Dragons	58.33
Bowling Aggregate	Gene Richards	Caringbah Sports	20
Bowling Average	James Gardner	Engadine Dragons	11.05
Centuries	Jay Davis	Engadine Dragons	135x,101
	Chris Williams	DLS Seagulls	128
	Gene Richards	Caringbah Sports	101x
	Scott Pickering	Caringbah Sports	100
Most Catches	Matthew Smith	Caringbah Sports	12

BATTING	Aggregate Average	Asso B.Wicks J.Bowme		Records Como Janna Caringbah S	and the second se	1994/95 765 1999/00 257.00		
Player	Club		H.S.	Innings	N.O.	Runs	Ave.	
J. Davis	Engadine I	Dragons	135x	10	1	525	58.33	
S. Pickering	Caringbah	Sports	100	9	2	402	57.43	
G. Richards	Caringbah	Sports	101x	10	3	365	52.14	
C. Williams	DLS Seag	ulls	128	8	1	348	49.71	
B. Harwin	Como Jan	nali	74	-11	0	310	28.16	
L. Trudgett	DLS Seag	ulls	55	11	2	297	33.00	

BOWLING Aggregate D.Eaglesh Average D.Eaglesh		PSAT/201	Records Gymea Bay Gymea Bay	1992 1992	283	31 5.61		
Player	Club		Overs	Maidens	Wickets	Ru	ns	Ave
G. Richards	Caringbah	Sports	90	8	20	31	6	15.80
J. Gardner	Engadine	Dragons	100	29	19	21	0	11.05
D. Fenning	Miranda M	lagpies	89	13	19	29	8	15.68
J. Davis	Engadine	Dragons	103	24	18	21	4	11.88
D. Simpson	Caringbah	Sports	100	25	18	21	9	12.17
M. Smith	Caringbah	Sports	114	37	18	23	8	13.22
M. Verzi	Illawong M	lenai	104	23	18	28	4	15.78

16B RESULTS SUMMARY

THE FRED MALBON MEMORIAL TROPHY

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
St. Patricks	4	4				2			56
Engadine Dragons	2	5				3			46
Aquinas College (1)	2	4				4			42
Bosco-Dragons	2	3			1 1	4		-	37
Aquinas College (2)	2	2			3	3			31
Illawong Menai	1	3			3	4			21

Premiers	St. Patricks		
Minor Premiers	St. Patricks		
Batting Aggregate Batting Average Bowling Aggregate Bowling Average Centuries	Ben White Michael Shapter Mark Cullen Chris Ross Michael Smith Michael Shapter	Aquinas College (2) St. Patricks St. Patricks Aquinas College (1) Aquinas College (1) St. Patricks	304 40.80 30 5.56 111
Most Catches	Thomas lacono	Aquinas College (1)	105 12

BATTING	Aggregate Average	Asso B.Wicks B.Wicks	ciation	Records Como Jannali Como Jannali	0.000	3/94 69 3/94 11	5 5.83
Player	Club		H.S.	Innings	N.O.	Runs	Ave.
B. White	Aquinas Coll	ege (2)	92	11	1	304	30.40
O. Samad	Bosco Drago	ons	72	13	1	296	24.67
P. Eades	Bosco Drago	ns	75	15	3	291	24.25
M. Smith	Aquinas Coll	ege (1)	111	10	2	290	36.25
T. Greenway	Engadine Dr	agons	48	14	1	286	22.00
N. James	Illawong Mer	nai	70	16	2	261	18.64

BOWLING	Aggregate Average	Asso J.Catt B.Cargili	ciation	Records DLS Seagull Sylvania Hei		1992/93 2000/01	50 4.94	
Player	Club		Overs	Maidens	Wick	ets Ru	ins	Ave.
M. Cullen	St. Patricks		102	26	30	- 26	65	8.83
P. Eades	Bosco Drago	ns	114	19	29	38	83	13.21
C. Ross	Aquinas Colle	ege (1)	65	21	25	1:	39	5.56
M. Smith	Aquinas Colle	ege (1)	98	27	25	23	30	9.20
S. Church	Illawong Men	ai	66	11	23	21	15	9.35
L. Annesley	St. Patricks		67	10	22	21	13	9.68
B. Collins	Aquinas Colle	ege (1)	87	17	22	2	19	9.95

16C RESULTS SUMMARY

THE KEN WHATLEY TROPHY

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
Gymea Bay	3	5				1			57
Como Jannali	1	5				2			53
Miranda Magpies	1	5			1	2			45
Engadine Dragons		1			2	4		1	29
St. Patricks		1			2	4	1		27
Illawong Menai		2			1	6			27 26,
Caringbah Sports		2			4	3			20

Premiers	Como Jannali		
Minor Premiers	Gymea Bay		
Batting Aggregate	Marc Hobman	Gymea Bay	370
Batting Average	Nicholas Chalmers	Gymea Bay	53.83
Bowling Aggregate	Michael Van Der Pol	Gymea Bay	19
Bowling Average	Phillip Egan	Gymea Bay	8.06
Centuries	NII	0.5570399855137	
Most Catches	Nicholas Chalmers	Gymea Bay	10

BATTING	Aggregate Average	Asso J.Batche T.Jenkin		Records St. John Bosco St. Patricks		1/02	568 59.1	
Player	Club		H.S.	Innings	N.O.	Ru	ns	Ave.
M. Hobman	Gymea Ba	y ·	88	9	0	37	0	41.11
N, Chalmers	Gymea Ba	y .	59x	9	3	32	3	53.83
G. Harvey	Miranda M	agpies	73x	11	2	32	2	35.78
K. Owen	Gymea Ba	y	93	8	0	.30	7	38.38
R. James	Illawong M	enai	90	13	1	28	8	24.00
T. Stelzer	Caringbah	Sports	78	13	1	27	8	23.17

BOWLING	Aggregate Average	Asso B.Parkin G.Hewitt	ciation	Records Gymea Bay Como Jannali	1999		3 .82
Player	Club		Overs	Maidens	Wickets	Runs	Ave,
M. Van Der Pol	Gymea Ba	y .	76	26	19	169	8.89
A. Mansell	Engadine I	Dragons	74	10	18	223	12.39
P. Egan	Gymea Ba	Y	67	17	17	137	8.06
R. Silburn	Illawong M	enai	80	22	16	204	12.75
B. Gorick	Illawong M	enai	66	7	16	209	13.06

14A RESULTS SUMMARY

THE JOHN BANNON MEMORIAL TROPHY

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
Caringbah Sports	1	6	1			3		-	42
Illawong Menai	1	7				2			42
Como Jannali		7				3			40
St. John Bosco		5		-	1 1	4	1	-	31
DLS Seaguils		2			1	7		_	19
Sylvania Heights		1			1.00	9			16

Premiers	Illawong Menai		
Minor Premiers	Illawong Menai		
Batting Aggregate	Matt Ryder	DLS Seagulls	434
Batting Average Bowling Aggregate	Steven Smith Aaron Mall	Illawong Menai Caringbah Sports	74.40 27
Bowling Aggregate	Aaron Mall	Caringbah Sports	7.33
Centuries	John Hair	St. John Bosco	135
	Steven Smith	Illawong Menai	128
	Ryan Mulally	St. John Bosco	127
	David Savic	Illawong Menai	123
	Luke Daenell	Como-Jannali	122
	Dimitri Alevizos	Illawong Menai	101x
Most Catches	Jake Brain	Sylvania Heights	11

BATTING	Aggregate Average	Association G. Morriss G. Morriss	Records Gymea Bay Gymea Bay	1995/96 1995/96	686 114.33	
Player	Club	H.S.	Innings	N.O.	Runs	Ave.
M. Ryder	DLS Seagulis	86	14	1	434	31.00
S. Smith	Illawong Mena	i 128	7	2	372	74.40
L. Daenell	Como-Jannali	122	9	0	341	37.89
A. Mall	Caringbah Spo	orts 72	8	3	325	65.00
R. Mulally	St. John Bosco	o 127	12	1	318	28.91
L. Casey	Illawong Mena	i 78	8	1	294	42.00

BOWLING	Aggregate Average	J. Mo	ociation Innes Innes	Records Gymea Bay Gymea Bay	1995/96 1995/96	40 4.2	8
Player	Club		Overs	Maidens	Wickets	Runs	Ave.
A. Mali	Caringbah S	ports	100	29	27	198	7.33
J. Roy	Como-Janna	ali	87	19	16	168	10.50
D. Brooker	St. John Bos	ico	91	15	16	301	18.81
R. Mulally	St. John Bos	600	84	14	15	243	16.20
B. Atton	DLS Seagul	s	78	19	11	157	14.27

14B RESULTS SUMMARY

THE JOHN MOODIE SHIELD

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
Miranda Magpies		8				2			44
Illawong Menai	1	5				4			39 39
Engadine Dragons	1	5				4			39
Aquinas College		5			1	4			31
Caringbah Sports		5				5			30 27
Como Jannali	1	2		-		7			27

Premiers	Miranda Magpies		
Minor Premiers	Miranda Magpies		
Batting Aggregate	Chris Reeves	Engadine Dragons	411
Batting Average	Chris Jamieson	Miranda Magpies	43.00
Bowling Aggregate	Greg Ings	Engadine Dragons	33
Bowling Average	Greg Ings	Engadine Dragons	7.60
Centuries	Chris Jamieson	Miranda Magpies	121x
	Chris Reeves	Engadine Dragons	102
Most Catches	Chris Beckham	Illawong Menai	10
	Anthony Wall	Illawong Menai	10

BATTING	Aggregate B. H		ociation lalea lalea	Records StJohnBosco StJohnBosco	1998/99 1998/99	689 98.42	
Player	Club		H.S.	Innings	N.O.	Runs	Ave.
C. Reeves	Engadine D	ragons	102	13	1	411	34.25
S. Borwick	Illawong Me	nal	89	12	1	406	36.91
D. Smith	Aquinas Co	llege	94	9	1	324	40.50
M. Hill	Como Jann	ali	59x	13	3	308	30.80
C. Jamieson	Miranda Ma	gpies	121x	9	2	301	43.00
M. Cheim	Caringbah S	Sports	49	13	1	224	18.67

BOWLING	Aggregate G. Nai Average G. Nai		20	Records StJohnBosco StJohnBosco	1 0 0 0 0 0 0	34 4.32	
Player	Club		Overs	Maidens	Wickets	Runs	Ave.
G. Ings	Engadine D	ragons	89	19	33	252	7.60
S. Geraghty	Caringbah S	Sports	86	25	22	190	8.64
M. Hill	Como Jann	ali	86	13	19	302	15.89
L. Agget	Illawong Me	inai	97	22	17	175	10.29
R. Van Vliet	Aquinas Co	llege	87	16	16	217	13.60
M. Hanrahan	Miranda Ma	gpies	89	19	15	131	8.73

14C RESULTS SUMMARY

THE KEN GARDNER MEMORIAL TROPHY

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
Miranda Magpies		6			12.0	4	10.00		36
Sylvania Heights		7			1	3.			35
St. Patricks		6			2	2			34
Aquinas College		5			24	5			32
Illawong Menai	1	3				6			31
St. John Bosco						10			12

Premiers	Miranda Magples		
Minor Premiers	Miranda Magpies		
Batting Aggregate Batting Average	Sam Kennis Rhys Simitsiotis	Aquinas College Illawong Menai	319 45.0
Bowling Aggregate	Stephen Coyle	St. Patricks	23
Bowling Average	Chris Male	Miranda Magpies	7.95
Centuries	Terrence Green	St. Patricks	103x
Hat tricks	Rhys Simitsiotis	Illawong Menai	103
Most Catches	Sam Kennis	Aquinas College	101
	Ben Holt	St. John Bosco	11

BATTING	Aggregate Average	Association G. Henry D. Vormister	Records StJohnBosco Heathcote	1996/97 1994/95	577 69.57	
Player	Club	H.S	Innings	N.O.	Runs	Ave.
S. Kennis	Aquinas Colle	ge 101	12	2	319	31.90
R. Simitsiotis	Illawong Men	ai 103	9	2	315	45.00
S. Coyle	St. Patricks	72x	12	3	315	35.00
J. Piper	St. John Bost	59	13	4	258	28.67
S. Szafranek	Sylvania Heig	ihts 45	13	0	251	19.31
J. Lines	Illawong Men	ai 86	10	0	239	23.90

BOWLING	Aggregate Average	Assoc M. Tiley S. Hern		Records Heathcote Illawong	1995/96 1998/99	36 3.65	5
Player	Club		Overs	Maidens	Wickets	Runs	Ave.
S. Coyle	St. Patricks		76	13	23	210	9.13
C. Male	Miranda Mag	pies	65	14	20	179	7.95
S. Szafranek	Sylvania Heig	phts	65	8	18	211	11.72
J. Piper	St. John Bos	co	79	11	15	255	17.00

14D RESULTS SUMMARY

THE GORDON THOMSON TROPHY

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
Miranda Magpies		9				31			48
St. Patricks	-	9				1		1	48
Sylvania Heights	1	4				4		1	48 39
Como Jannali		6				4			36
Gymea Bay	1	4		1		5			35
DLS Seagulis		3		-		6	1		36 35 26
Illawong Menai		2	1		1	7			19
Engadine Dragons					1	9	-		11

Premiers	St. Patricks		
Minor Premiers	Miranda Magpies		
Batting Aggregate Batting Average	Daniel Brett Jack Barden	DLS Seagulls Miranda Magpies	317 40.71
Bowling Aggregate	Luke Bateman	St. Patricks	23
Bowling Average	Otis Duncan	Miranda Magpies	6.15
Centuries	Jack Barden	Miranda Magpies	105x
Most catches	Daniel Brett	DLS Seagulls	101x
	Sean Shulka	St. Patricks	100x
	Sean Blake	Sylvania Heights	14

BATTING	Average G		ociation enry enry	Records StJohnBosco StJohnBosco	1995/96 1995/96		474 52.57	
Player	Club		H.S.	Innings	N.O.	Runs	Ave.	
D. Brett	DLS Seagul	ls	101x	11	3	317	39.63	
S. Shulka	St. Patricks		100x	12	4	294	36.75	
J. Barden	Miranda Ma	gpies :	105x	8	1	285	40.71	
S. Metham	Illawong Me	nai	68	15	1	263	18.79	
L. Armour	Sylvania He	ights	65	11	1	238	23.80	
M. Wong	Sylvania He	ights	55	12	2	237	23.70	

BOWLING	Aggregate Average	Assoc D. Wood L. Agge	ds	Records Aquinas Coll IllawongMen	•	994/95 001/02	36 3.38
Player	Club		Overs	Maidens	Wickets	Runs	Ave.
L. Bateman	St. Patricks		82	10	23	263	11.43
M. Owen	Sylvania Heig	phts	71	3	21	253	12.00
O. Duncan	Miranda Mag	pies	75	19	20	123	6.15
W. Harding	Sylvania Heig	phts	86	12	20	179	8.95
J. Glendenning	Miranda Mag	pies	61	19	16	102	6.38
S. Emanuel	Como Jannal		48	8	16	126	7.88

12A RESULTS SUMMARY

THE TED WYKES TROPHY

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
Illawong Menai	1	8	1000			1			51
Engadine Dragons		8				2			44
Caringbah Sports		7				3			40
Gymea Bay	1	3			1	7			24
Como Jannali		2		1	1	6			21
DLS Seagulls				1		9			14

Premiers	Engadine Dragons		
Minor Premiers	Illawong Menai		
Batting Aggregate	Ben Marciante	Engadine Dragons	479
Batting Average	Ben Marciante	Engadine Dragons	159.67
Bowling Aggregate	Alec Judd	Caringbah Sports	19
Bowling Average	Alec Judd	Caringbah Sports	5.53
Centuries	Ben Marciante	Engadine Dragons	108x
Most Catches	Mark Andersson	DLS Seaguils	8

BATTING	Aggregate Average	Association e C.Lake B.Marciante		Records Engadine Dr Engadine Dr		1990/91 576 2002/03 159.67			
Player	Club		H.S.	Innings	N.O.	Runs	Ave.		
B. Marciante	Engadine	Dragons	108x	9	6	479	159.67		
A. Judd	Caringbah	Sports	92	10	0	399	39.90		
A. Jones	Engadine	Dragons	48	10	1	254	28.22		
M. Sharkey	Illawong M		62	9	1	247	30.88		
C. Wright	DLS Seag	ulls	54x	13	6	238	34.00		
B. Latham	Engadine		99	10	0	223	22.30		

BOWLING	Aggregate Average	Asso S.McGe A.Judd	achie	Records Illawong Mer Caringbah S		1992 2002	100 C	34 5.53	
Player	Club		Overs	Maidens	Wick	ets	Ru	15	Ave.
A. Judd	Caringbah	Sports	69	15	19)	10	5	5.53
S. Newman	Engadine I	Dragons	75	12	18	3	21	3	11.83
M. Sharkey	Illawong M	lenai	75	18	17	10 C	14	8	8.71
D. Ward	Engadine I	Dragons	76	20	14	1.	18	0	12.86
C. Heard	Engadine I	Dragons	79	14	12	2	21	7	18.08

12B RESULTS SUMMARY

THE MORT EDSON TROPHY

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
Illawong Menai		8				2			44
St. Patricks		8				2			44
Aquinas College	1	5			1	4			39
Engadine Dragons		5				5			32
Miranda Magpies		2				8			20
Caringbah Sports		1			1	8	-		15

Premiers	Illawong Menai		
Minor Premiers	Illawong Menai		
Batting Aggregate	Nathan Green	St. Patricks	321
Batting Average	Michael Dumbrell	Engadine Dragons	39.50
Bowling Aggregate	Liam Roberts	Illawong Menai	16
Bowling Average	Billy Najjarine	Illawong Menai	6.42
Most Catches	Cameron Byrom	Illawong Menai	8

BATTING	Aggregate Average	Assoc M.Holt M.Smith	ciation	Records Sylvania Hei Aguinas Col	A	1999/00	526 95.6
Player	Club	- M.Olim	H.S.	Inninas	N.O.	Rui	
N. Green	St. Patricks	5	68	12	2	32	testi berekedes
M. Dumbrell	Engadine I	Dragons	57	8	2	23	C (1978) (197
P. Chapman	St. Patricks	5	59	9	0	22	0 24.44
J. Moseley	Illawong M	enai	78	9	0	21	6 24.00
C. Byrom	Illawong M	enai	70	10	0	21	4 21.40
S. Fenning	Miranda M	agpies	56	9	2	20	3 29.00

BOWLING	Aggregate Average	Asso J.Gallyo T.Fenec M. Ryde	b	Records Cronulla Sea St. Patricks Cronulla Sea		1994/ 1991/ 2000/	92	35 4.44 4.44	
Player	Club		Overs	Maidens	Wick	rets	Run	15	Ave.
L. Roberts	Illawong M	enai	45	8	16	1000	114	1	7.13
M. Dumbrell	Engadine I	Dragons	70	16	14		155	5	11.07
 Najjarine 	Illawong M	enai	62	24	12		77		6.42

12C RESULTS SUMMARY

THE TYNAN MOTORS TROPHY

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
Sylvania Heights	-	9				1			48
Como Jannali		7		1		2			42
Caringbah Sports	1	5				4			39
Illawong Menai		6		-	4	4			36
St. John Bosco		5		1		4			34
Gymea Bay		3				7			24
Loftus	-	3				7			23
St. Patricks					1	9			11

Note: Competition points were deducted in this grade for the breach of Regulations.

Premiers	Sylvania Heights		
Minor Premiers	Sylvania Heights		
Batting Aggregate	Chris Bambury	Sylvania Heights	497
Batting Average	Chris Bambury	Sylvania Heights	82.83
Bowling Aggregate	Shane Te Patu	Sylvania Heights	20
Bowling Average	Shane Te Patu	Sylvania Heights	6.20
Centuries	Chris Bambury	Sylvania Heights	121x
	Thomas Hinks	Como Jannali	106
	Mitchell Floyd	St. John Bosco	102x
Most Catches	Sam Westwood	Como Jannali	10

BATTING	Aggregate Average	Ass D.Bean E.Masc		Records Engadine Dr DLS Seaguli	1000	1999/00 2000/01	549 188.5
Player	Club		H.S.	Innings	N.O.	Rur	is Ave.
C. Bambury	Sylvania H	leights	121x	10	4	49	7 82.83
M. Walkerden	Loftus		87	12	1	41	7 37.91
M. Floyd	St. John B	OSCO	102x	10	2	323	2 40.25
D. Harding	Sylvania H	leights	55x	10	2	263	2 32.75
M. Kemp	St. Patrick	s	45	14	0	26	1 18.64
T. Hinks	Como Jan	nali	106	10	0	21	9 21.90

BOWLING	Aggregate Average	Ass J.Brode M.Glee		Records Miranda Mag Caringbah S	ALC: NOT THE REPORT OF	1994/9 1989/9		33 2.03	
Player	Club		<u>Overs</u>	Maidens	Wick	ets	Run	1 <u>S</u>	Ave.
S. Te Patu	Sylvania H	leights	60	11	20		124	4	6.20
T. Hinks	Como Jan	nali	55	8	19		184	\$	9.68
D. Carroll	Sylvania H	leights	62	14	18		166	5	9.22
M. James	Sylvania H	leights	74	21	15	à	128	30	8.53

12D RESULTS SUMMARY

THE IRENE RUTTY MEMORIAL TROPHY

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
Caringbah Sports	1	9						1	55
Loftus		8				2			55 44
Gymea Bay		7				3			38
Como Jannali		6		-		4			36
Aquinas College		4				6			38 36 28 27
DLS Seagulls		4			1	5			27
Engadine Dragons		1				9			16
Illawong Menai			1			10			12

Premiers Minor Premiers Caringbah Sports Caringbah Sports



10A RESULTS SUMMARY

THE RON HILDITCH TROPHY

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
St. John Bosco		7				3			40
St. Patricks		7				3			40
Illawong Menai		7			-	3			40
Gymea Bay		4				6			28
DLS Seagulls		3				7			24
Sylvania Heights		2				8			20

Premiers	St. John Bosco		
Minor Premiers	St. John Bosco		
Batting Aggregate Batting Average Bowling Aggregate Bowling Average Most Catches	Brett Johnson Jordan Dow Addison Grinham Addison Grinham Matt Smith Mark Salzmann	Gymea Bay St. John Bosco St. John Bosco St. John Bosco Sylvania Heights Illawong Menal	243 37.50 20 5.30 10 10

BATTING	Aggregate	Association S. Smith S. Smith	Records Illawong Illawong	1998/ 1998/	12 C 1	
Player	Club	H.S.	Innings	N.O.	Runs	Ave.
B. Johnson	Gymea Bay	53	10	1	243	27.00
J. Dow	St. John Bos	co 55*	9	3	225	37.50
L. Manahan	DLS Seagulis		11	1	209	20.90
D. Hunt	DLS Seaguli		10	2	208	26.00
D. Smith	St. Patricks	57	9	2	206	29.43

BOWLING	Aggregate Average	Association B. Ronald J. Drinkwater	Records Illiawong Mena Illiawong Mena	71 5552 C 12 C	/******	
Player	Club	Overs	Maidens	Wickets	Runs	Ave.
A. Grinham	St. John Bosco	50	12	20	105	5.30
T. Curtis	Gymea Bay	64	18	14	112	8.00
N. McCarthy	DLS Seaguils	56	10	13	85	6.50

10B RESULTS SUMMARY

THE KEN PRENDERGAST TROPHY

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
Engadine Dragons	-	9	-		-	1		-	48
Caringbah Sports 1		9			6	1			48
Como Jannalli		7				3			40 32
Aquinas College		5				5			32
St. Patricks		3		18		7			24
Illawong Menai		2	1			7			22
Gymea Bay		2	1			7			22
Caringbah Sports 2		2				8			20

Premiers Minor Premiers Engadine Dragons Engadine Dragons

10C RESULTS SUMMARY

THE WALLY CROUCHER MEMORIAL TROPHY

Team	wo	W1	Draw	Tie	LO	L1	W1 LO	L1 WO	Points
St. John Bosco		7				3			40 .
Engadine Dragons		6				4			40.
Aquinas College		6		1	-	4		-	36
Caringbah Sports		5				5			36 32
Illawong Menai		3				7			24
Miranda Magpies		3		1		7			24

Premiers Minor Premiers St. John Bosco St. John Bosco



PART IV - THE 2002- 03 REPRESENTATIVE SEASON.

REPRESENTATIVE CRICKET MANAGER'S REPORT

For the 2002 - 2003 cricket season SSJCA entered teams in the following NSWDCA competitions:

Foster Shield

Moore Shield

- Creak Shield
- Cawsey Shield
 Gee Shield

- · Weblin Shield
- Watson Shield

Additionally teams played in the President's Cup competition in the U12, U14 & U16 age divisions.

The Weblin Shield team contested the semi final while all other teams were more than competitive in their division.

The U12s tried admirably, the U14s lost only one of their 5 matches and the U16s were undefeated. Rain caused a washout in the final round that meant that Sutherland just missed out on winning the 2002-2003 President's Cup.

My congratulations and thanks to all team coaches and managers who gave so much of their time to ensure that the representative experience was valuable and enjoyable for their players.

Special thanks go to the highly skilled and efficient Assistant Rep Managers, Rob Maloney and Allan Morgan. These men did a mountain of work behind the scenes and were the major reason for the rep season running so smoothly.

I must also give "XXXXL thanks" to Helen Morgan who accepted the task of handling all aspects of the rep apparel. Helen (and Allan) performed this onerous duty so well that I can't see anyone be able to wrestle it from them for many years to come!

Throughout the season Sutherland maintained it's on field reputation of being not only talented and competitive but also disciplined and well versed in the etiquette of cricket. The players must be congratulated for conducting themselves in a fashion that makes all of us proud of them, regardless of the result of the game.

I also wish to pass on to the players who have completed junior cricket my best wishes for their cricketing future. Hopefully we will see many of them represent SDCC and go on to even higher honours.

The ACB maintains, "Representative Cricket is extremely important for the development of talented cricketers. It provides the opportunity for players to be challenged and have their skills extended to a greater extent than in normal competition". The SSJCA Committee can be pleased that all involved with this season's teams have achieved this goal.

John Dyson

C. S. WATSON SHIELD



Back Row: Rob Maloney (Manager), James Gardner, Brody Harwin, Tim Gosper, Matthew Lines, Luke Maloney, Chris Macnamara (Coach).

Front Row: Shaun Pickering, Jay Davis, Stephen Cush, Scott Pickering, Chris Williams, Tom Ward, Daniel Harris.

We were full of expectations for what was to be our last season of junior representative cricket. With some new faces Tim Gosper, Tom Ward, Matthew Lines & a new coach Chris MacNamara we intended to give the competition a real shake.

After a good showing in a trial against St George we came up against an ACT outfit which we totally outclassed. Chris Williams 109 & Jay Davis 89 continued their good form from last season, with Scott Pickering & Brody Harwin both chipping in we amassed 294. Our bowlers dominated rolling ACT for 68. Chris, Jay & Luke Maloney the main destroyers. We pushed for maximum points, however ACT put up a fight & held on.

In high spirits from game one we headed to Campbelltown & met a strong opposition Camden who batted above themselves to score 281. We batted well with Stephen Cush 69, Chris 56 & Shaun Pickering 49 but were short. This loss would turn out to crucial for our chance of making the semis.

Round three saw us at the home of cricket in the shire, Caringbah Oval up against a strong Bankstown outfit. Scott 106 & Chris another 50 had us in a position to get to 300, however a batting collapse saw us all out for 225. After a steady start we soon had Bankstown in trouble with Luke & James Gardner rewarded with some great controlled fast bowling, Jay chipped in with a vital wicket, Brody & Chris helping to finish off, Bankstown all out 156. A highlight of the game were two super run out & some great catching.

Round four up against our fierce rivals Fairfield/Liverpool. The weather was the winner, with rain washing away our chances of a semi final berth.

Round five we were determined to finish winners, we trekked to Baulkham Hills to play Parramatta. We dominated from the start, bowling them out for just 140. Jay produced his best 5/9 off 12 overs, Brody, Luke each with two & Tim Gosper his first for the season. We struggled after a good opening stand from Chris & Stephen, however Jay with a controlled 50 saw us home with 10 overs to spare.

A season that promised so much was over, we finished 2nd in our pool, however the overall performance of the team was excellent. Chris Williams, our skipper Scott Pickering, Jay Davis outstanding with the bat. Luke Maloney & Jay took the bowling honours, with wickets spread around the rest of the bowlers.

Thanks must go to all the boys for their efforts during the season & the parents who helped with scoring & afternoon teas (Sutho by far the best in this department) & lastly to our coach Chris MacNamara, who guided the boys well.

Rob Maloney. Manager

MATCH RESULTS

Round 1	Sutherland 7/218 vs ACT 68 & 1/43 Chris Williams 109 & 3/18, Jay Davis 89 & 4/6 Luke Maloney 2/7 & 1/15
Round 2	Sutherland 8/220 vs Camden 4/281 Stephen Cush 69, Chris Williams 56, Shaun Pickeri
Round 3	Sutherland 225 vs Bankstown 156 Scott Pickering 106, Chris Williams 50 Luke Maloney 3/26, James Gardner 2/33
Round 4	Wash out
Round 5	Sutherland 7/142 vs Parramatta 140 Jay Davis 50 & 5/9, Luke Maloney 2/24 Brody Harwin 2/32

E. G. WEBLIN SHIELD



Back Row:	Kerry Richards (Coach), Mark Giovenco, Mathew Cork, Daniel Simpson,	
	Chad Williams, Joshua Zywitz, Tony Tudgett (Manager).	
The second		

z, Tony Tudgett (Manager). Front Row: Blake Miller, Gene Richards, Brett McHugh, Nathan Whittingham, Luke Trudgett, Mitchell Krywulycz, Mathew Earley.

This years Weblin shield cricket team moulded itself into an extremely competent unit over the season, making the semi-finals only to be defeated by the very strong Bankstown team who were the eventual winners.

Following the successful trial against St.George our first match was against Blacktown on a blistering hot day out west. After getting off to a "flier" and looking like scoring 300 or more we collapsed to be all out for 165 with only Gene Richards showing real form.(68).In a tight finish after being 6-135, Blacktown were bundled out for 141 with Daniel Simpson cleaning up the tail to finish with 4-27.

Having been drawn to play Northern Districts at Sutherland Oval next we felt we must have blown all our chances after being dismissed for only 141. This score was only achieved after a late order recovery by Mathew Cork and Luke Trudgett.

We had been hearing about the strength of their batting but with tight bowling and some wonderful outfield catching we were able to keep sustained pressure on them to eventually dismiss them for 94!!

na 49

The team was showing great discipline, with good fielding and well controlled bowling a feature, thus the boys were able to put continuous pressure on the opposition and allow us to defend small targets, however could we chase a total?

Our next match was against Hornsby, which had been transferred from its original ground to another oval running along the Galston Gorge escarpment. The wicket was totally under prepared however both teams wanted to play.

Homsby won the toss and elected to bat on a wicket that was both seaming around and taking some spin. After finally adjusting to the conditions we managed to dismiss Homsby for a modest 134 An easy game this. No way! We struggled from the start and again it was not our batsmen but our all-rounders who carried the day with Sutho eventually falling across the line to win a nall-biter by 3 runs!

Illawarra at Port Kembla was our next match and for the first time we scored over 200 thanks to a great 97 n.o. by Josh Zywitz. Unfortunately time ran out before Josh was able to get what would have been a much deserved century. In yet another tight finish we managed to dismiss Illawarra for 197.

Little has been said of the bowling however Mathew Earley ,Mark Giovenco and Nathan Whittingham all did a terrific job,all bowling an excellent line and length.

Our final match was against Manly at Caringbah Oval. Half centuries to both Mathew Cork and Mitchell Krywulycz allowed us to post a competitive 205 which proved to be too much for Manly who were all out for 165.

We had won 5 out of 5 and looked forward to the semi-finals with some confidence. After drawing Bankstown at Hurstville Oval unfortunately we allowed their batsmen to get on top after holding them for the first 25 overs. The 280 they had scored proved to be too much although we looked good after scoring at 7 an over for the first 50, eventually being all out for 200

Congratulations to all the boys who represented in the Weblin Shield this year. Although there have been several changes to the makeup of this group of boys, they have always represented the Shire with distinction both on and off the field. A special thanks to Geoff Cork and to Tony Trudgett for their assistance during the season and also to the parents who showed such great support for all the boys.

Kerry Richards.

Coach

HAROLD MOORE SHIELD



Back Row:

Peter Smith (Coach), Skipp Richards, Matt Ryder, John Hair, Luke Daenell, Terry Ryder (Manager).

Front Row: Steven Smith, Elliot Mason, Beau Peterson, Anthony Singleton, Aaron Mall, Liam Casey, David Savic. (Absent: Ben Jamieson)

As the season began we had a sense that we could get through to the finals and this was reinforced in the first game. We came up against Camden who had been semifinalists last year and annihilated them. On a very hot (40 deg +) day on a treeless "paddock" at Camden we bowled first and after 30 overs Camden were all out for 70. All bowlers stuck to their guns in the heat and the fielding was good. Anthony Singleton and Skipp Richards opened the bowling and after completing their spell Camden were 3-12 - 1 wicket each and a run out. John Hair and Beau Petersson bowled the next 10 overs also taking a wicket each and leaving Camden 5-33. Aaron Mall (2 wickets) and Steven Smith (3 wickets) completed the job in the next 10 overs. We then batted aggressively to score the runs without losing a wicket in 12 overs - Liam Casey ending with 35 not out and John Hair 39 not out.

The second game was against Central Coast - a team we have played every year and beaten, but each year the scores were getting closer. Unfortunately we did not bowl well and Central Coast scored 192 in their innings. We then struggled with the bat and when Steven Smith was out in the 45th over for 76 we were 5 - 116. Eventually we needed 50 runs from 9 overs and were in trouble when Aaron Mall and Skipp Richards

came together. They guided us closer to victory and it came down to the last ball where we needed 1 to tie or 2 to win. A good well pitched up ball saw us squeeze a quick single to short midon. The fielder chose the heroic option and shied at the stumps, missed and 2 overthrows gave us a very hard fought victory.

Round 3 was against Canterbury West and we were Sharifuled. We bowled and fielded well but without luck. However, they had Shariful Islam, one of the better batters in the competition and playing 3rd Grade for Balmain UTS. He batted very well and made a chanceless 170 not out in their score of 277. We could only manage 6-210 with Luke Daenell (24), Matt Ryder (52) and Ben Jamieson (67 not out) all batting well.

The fourth game was our crunch game against St George. We win we go through they win they go through. We had already beaten St George in the trials and were confident of doing it again. We started well, bowling them out for 134 in the 58th over with Aaron Mall and Steven Smith both taking 3 wickets. Elliot Mason also kept particularly well taking 3 catches and a stumping. Unfortunately we forgot that we also had to bat and were all out in the 40th over for 107.

The fifth match was against Hornsby. We batted first and made 224 runs on a slow outfield. The main scorers were John Hair (50), Steven Smith(59), David Savic(38) and Aaron Mall(36). We then bowled well to have Hornsby all out for 71 in the 35th over.

Generally we played well throughout the season. In particular we bowled well and generally fielded well. Unfortunately, our batting let us down in the game against St George and we now look towards next year.

Terry Ryder. Manager

MATCH RESULTS

Round 1:	Sutherland 0-76 beat Camden 70 Steven Smith 3-24, Aaron Mall 2-12, John Hair 39x, Liam Casey 35x
Round 2:	Sutherland 7-194 beat Central Coast 7-192 Steven Smith 76, Aaron Mall 35x, Skipp Richards 26
Round 3:	Sutherland 6-210 lost to Canterbury West 4-277 Ben Jamleson 67x, Matthew Ryder 52
Round 4:	Sutherland 107 lost to St George 134 Aaron Mall 3-18, Steven Smith 3-24
Round 5:	Sutherland 8-224 beat Hornsby 71 Steven Smith 59 & 3-14, Skipp Richards 2-3, Ryan Mulally 2-6, John I 50, David Savic 38x, Aaron Mall 36

W. S. GEE SHIELD



Back Row: Bob Manning (Coach), Matthew Morgan, Michael Osmond, James Demaria, Jake Brain, Timothy Smith, Allan Hudson (Manager).

lair

Front Row: Sean McInnes, Daniel Foster, Joshua Hudson, Hayden Watson, Hayden Calvey, Luke Armstrong, Michael Kelly.

From last years squad four players were selected for the NSW Emerging Blues U13 side, which left four spots to be filled in our trial game against St George and I would like to thank Dimitri Alevizos, Joel Leffler, Reece Estall and Thomas Jackson for playing for us. Unfortunately two of our originally selected players, Daniel Foster and James De Maria were unable to play due to injury - they were replaced by Dimitri and Joel.

Round one against St George and we batted first and made 216. Jake Brain (94), Sean McInnes (57) and Joshua Hudson (34) were the main scorers. We probably should have scored over 250 but our last six wickets surrendered cheaply. Great fielding and tight bowling contained Saints to 160, having them 8/90 at one stage. Dimitri Alevizos (2/20) and Michael Osmond (1/20) were the pick of the bowlers.

Round two against Illawarra was a real struggle. We made 8/152 but this was due mainly to Michael Osmond (55) scoring pugnaciously at the end to make our score look respectable. Our bowling and fielding pulled us out of the fire with our quicks bowling particularly well. Joshua Hudson (3-11) being the pick of the early bowling teaming up with Tim Smith from the opposite end. Michael Kelly (5 o 4m 0/1) as first change was

unlucky not to take a wicket but bowled a very tight spell. Still Illawarra were cruising to victory until medium pace with Hayden Watson (5 o 2/11) and spin with Michael Osmond (12 o 1/17) and Dimitri Alevizos (8 o 1/7) was introduced putting the pressure on. Backed by fantastic fielding including 1 run out each by Josh and Michael Kelly, we were able to dismiss Illawarra for 83.

We needed to win against Hornsby, our arch rivals. We batted first and were 1/81 but due to undisciplined batting only reached 121. Hayden Calvey (16), Luke Armstrong (36) and Sean McInnes (19) were the stars. Tim Smith and Joshua Hudson took early wickets and Joel Leffler (6 o 0/15) bowled well. In the end we did not get enough runs to apply pressure to their batting and they passed us three wickets down.

Round four and we needed a team bonding session so we organised a trip to Canberra. Canberra batted first and while wickets were hard to get our fielding was superb and we restricted them to 5/162. We needed a steady start and Luke Armstrong (23) and Hayden Calvey (30) put on a fifty run opening partnership. Sean (56x) and Joshua (19x) saw us through to victory. Thanks to all the parents and players for a great weekend.

Round five against Fairfield and a solid start by Luke Armstrong (52) helped us reach 4/96 but we stalled with a couple of quick wickets until Joshua Hudson (31) and Michael Osmond (30) steadled the ship helped by a smart 16x from Matt Morgan, to finish up with 7/163. Fairfield hit through the ball and looked in control at 1/81 after 22. overs. Our spinners Michael (3/13) and Joel Leffler (3/13) took 6/23 in 20 overs with Matt contributing behind the stumps with a good stumping and catch. This and wonderful fielding which included 2 great runouts by Luke and Hayden Watson saw victory gained.

Unfortunately our quotient was not quite good enough to make the finals but four from five wins was a great result.

Thanks to all the parents for all their support and help during the season and to the players for their excellent behaviour and their desire to improve their cricket. Finally, thanks to Bob Manning for stepping in to coach the side and doing such a great job.

Allan Hudson. Manager

MATCH RESULTS

maronin		
Round 1:	Sutherland 216 defeated Georges River St George 160	
Round 2:	Sutherland 8/152 defeated Illawarra 83	
Round 3:	Sutherland 121 lost to Hornsby Ku Ring Gai 3/132	

- Sutherland /165 defeated Canberra 5/162 Round 4:
- Sutherland 7/163 defeated Fairfield 144 Round 5:

ARCH CAWSEY SHIELD



Back Row: Vin Sharkey (Coach), Eric Schnyder, Bryce Daenell, Daniel Ward, Ben Marciante, Michael Sharkey, Brad Saunders (Manager),

Front Row: Alec Judd, Thomas Aggett, Rhys Bobyk, Andrew Jones, Adam Hone, Daniel Saunders, Lachlan Gill.

As far as results are concerned we could not say that it was a very good year at all. Unfortunately our season started badly and didn't really recover. It seemed our batting had it's confidence knocked out of it early and we just could make the totals required which had almost been the strength of this team in the past were we seemed to be able to chase down any target. Bowling and fielding was of it's usual high standard and the addition of Adam Hone as Wicket Keeper this year added another dimension in the field.

This year we also welcomed Lachlan Gill who made some useful contributions with both bat and ball and fitted in well with the old crowd. Rhys Bobyk also returned to the fold and seemed to pick up from where he left off in the victorious Foster Shield ranks. It is said that luck plays a certain amount in all sport and it was as though all ours had deserted us. Even new Skipper Daniel Ward went 0 from 5 on the coin toss. The team as a whole didn't fare much better with 1 from 5.

That aside it was still a very enjoyable and rewarding experience for the boys with some fine personal performances. The howling wind at one game saw Vin change

Daniel Saunders from a leggy to an opening quick to push into the wind which yielded him a "3 for" and in doing so remained as opening bowler for the remainder of the season. His opening partner Daniel Ward had a great year as captain and proved more than a handful for every batsman who had to face him. Eric Schnyder, Andrew Jones & Alec Judd all had success with bat & ball and featured in the top end of the statistics on both counts.

If the team had little luck then Ben Marciante had none as he just couldn't convert his club form into runs on Sunday but still enjoyed some success with the ball. Rhys showed his new found form in the field taking some good catches and his batting certainly carried his usual flair. Michael Sharkey improved as the season went on and finished with a few good digs including a memorable match winning innings at Blacktown, not forgetting those pies he kept chucking. Seems batsmen don't like pies these days?

Tom Aggett looked the goods this year opening the batting and hitting the ball harder than ever before and although the big scores did not fall his way they are certainly not far away at this level. The same can be said for Bryce Daenell who has always hit the ball firmly and seemed only a matter of time before he really unleashed a big innings.

I quess some consistency and some more positive batting and we will again be back on top of our game and hopefully on top of the ladder in next years Rep season. Congratulations to the boys for the manner in which they conducted themselves and a special thanks to Super Coach Vin Sharkey for his excellent guidance. Thanks also to John Dyson, Allan Morgan and the SSJCA management committee for their support of this team and representative Cricket in the Shire.

Brad Saunders. Manager

J. H. CREAK SHIELD



Back Row: Barry Phillips (Coach), Avi	Back Row:	Barry	Phillips	(Coach),	Avist
---------------------------------------	-----------	-------	----------	----------	-------

h Sharma, Mark Andersson, Niall Woan, Dylan Nash, Connor Wright, Ken Newman (Manager).

Front Row: Mark Rice, Matt Beattie, Sam Newman, Pat Burns, Nick Sharman, Andrew McRae, Tom Dewhurst,

We welcomed a number of new players into the Creak Shield side this year, and it is testament to the boy's efforts, how easily they fitted in and how quickly this bunch of blokes became a team!

The first competition game saw our team playing South Eastern at Booralee. South Eastern were last years runners up, and we knew it was not going to be easy. We lost the toss and were invited to field, on a hot, still morning. South Eastern were 3-89 at morning tea, and were looking strong. An excellent fightback saw them 8-161 after the 50 overs. At 3-5 after 5 overs we were in need of some consolidation. Unfortunately it wasn't to be, and we were rolled for just 45 runs in 29 overs.

Round 2 Vs Hornsby Kuringal. After losing the toss, we were invited to bat. Niall Woan top scored with 41. We batted out the final overs aggressively to give us a competitive total of 4/130.

An outstanding effort in the field, and some tight bowling saw Hornsby Kuringai struggle for runs - 3/49 at afternoon tea. Our bowling continued to be miserly after the adjournment, and a well taken catch in the final over saw Hornsby Kuringai bowled out for 104.

Round 3 was at home, against Camden. A good win for the blokes this week. First use of the ball in wet windy overcast conditions, made it a little difficult for our bowlers, and the sundry count was way too high. When we weren't bowling wides, we kept the runs down, and our fielding was again of a very high standard. Camden finished their overs at 6-119. The good guys turn to bat and our opening partnership put on 28, with good running between the wickets. Niall Woan went on to top score with 37. We passed Camden's score in the 38th over, and never looked too troubled.

Special thanks to Matt Burg for filling in for our injured leggie Tom in this match. Matt bowled 4 good overs of leg spin to finish with 0-9, and performed to his usual high standard in the field.

Round 4 A hot and smoky Smith Park was the venue for our clash with Bankstown.

Having lost the toss, we were invited to bat. After losing an early wicket, we batted consistently, but failed to put away the loose balls. Avish was the star today scoring an impressive 49*. The team couldn't have asked for a better start, having Bankstown 2-28 after 15 overs. We were in with a sniff, but lady luck deserted us, and a few edges, and a couple of uppish mishits that landed safely cost us the game. They passed us 4 down in the 35th over. The blokes gave 110% on the day, and luck certainly didn't go our way, but we were proud of the way the blokes stuck at it, and went down fighting.

Round 5 Vs Parramatta - A great way to finish off the year. Parra won the toss and sent us in. A slow start and a steady stream of wickets saw us 4-52 after 25. Matt Beattie entered the fray, and took control. 3 excellent partnerships with Nick, Mark and Connor saw us post a respectable score of 7/143

The four opening bowlers bowled superb line and length, to keep the pressure on. The first wicket fell in the 15th over, and by the tea break Parra were on the back foot at 1-41. We bowled our overs and restricted the Parramatta batsmen to 6-105.

Many thanks go to our coach Barry Phillips, who again worked above and beyond the call.

Every game was played in the right spirit, and the team harmony was nothing short of unbelievable. Also thanks to the Mums and Dads who scored and organised teas etc, and most importantly provided never ending encouragement to the boys. Congratulations "blokes" on a very entertaining and successful season. You have all represented Sutherland in a truly sporting manner. Well done!

Ken Newman. Manager

MATCH RESULTS

Round 1:	Sutherland (10/45) lost to South Eastern (8 for 161)
Round 2:	Sutherland (4 for 130) defeated Hornsby Kuringai(10 for 104)
Round 3:	Sutherland (4 for 121) defeated Camden(6 for 119)
Round 4:	Sutherland (6 for 125) lost to Bankstown (5 for 126)
Round 5:	Sutherland (7 for 143) defeated Parramatta (6 for 105)

W. G. FOSTER SHIELD



Back Row:

 Peter Schofield (Coach), Bill Johnson (Coach), Michael Reardon, Taylor Curtis, Barton Lynch, Kieran McQuart, Adam Whatley, Harry Peters (Manager).

Front Row: Nathan Loder, Liam Herne, Mitchell Foster, Duncan Hunt, Nicholas McCarthy, Mitch McInnes, Michael Behringer.

It was a wonderful experience working with this age group and both Schole and I learned a lot about our coaching, from this enthusiastic group of cricketers.

I am positive that the boys also learned a lot through the discipline and skill work, as we saw a great improvement in not only results, like runs and wickets, but in their approach and attitudes to the game in general, as we progressed through the season.

The boys showed a tremendous keenness and willingness to try and improve, with their efforts at practice, and what they lacked in general skills was compensated for by their great enthusiasm.

We tried to work very hard on improving these basic skills and there is still a long way to go, but at this age surely the main goal is to learn and improve through participation and enjoyment, and I am sure we achieved this.

While we had a couple of boys that stood out individually on the field and they know who they are, it is important that we recognise that we were a team and that all 12 had to participate for us, as a team, or any individual to succeed. This was the message that we tried to promote throughout the season.

This team message was carried through extremely well by the experience and dedication of our manager Harry Peters, who had the off field team, the parents (and some grandparents), drilled to a finely tuned unit of great support to the boys, Schoie and myself.

In thanking all the parents and particularly Harry for his support as Manager, I must also personally thank Peter Schofield, whose vast knowledge and experience, was greatly appreciated by the boys and myself and helped to make our season so enjoyable.

We must also thank Mike Mooney for the excellent job he did with Harry in looking after the team in our trial games that Peter and I were unable to attend.

Finally to the boys, thanks for your support from Harry. Schoie and me, and whatever happens in your cricket from here on, we hope you will always remember your 1st season of Rep Cricket in the mighty Sutho under 10's.

Bill Johnson. Coach

MATCH RESULTS

- Round 2: Camden 7/136 defeated Sutherland 117
- Round 3: Gladesville 8/131 defeated Sutherland 44
- Round 4: Sutherland 187 defeated Gordon 6/160
- Round 5: South Eastern 8/116 defeated Sutherland 63

PRESIDENTS U16



Back Row:	Bob Dalling (Coach), Graeme Girdler, Lars Jensen, James Bills, Adam
	Logan, Terry Chalmers (Manager).
Front Row:	Luke Annesley, Liam Rossenröde, Patrick Dalling, Daniel Fenning, Robert Dumbrell, Beau Creevey, Nicholas Chalmers.
-	

The Presidents U16 team went through their representative season undefeated – a great effort considering the quality of the competition.

There was no stand out player in our team, we were a team of good allrounders whose teamwork and support of each other won us our games.

Every match was very competitive and many times we were under the whip only to find that little extra in the home straight, as champions do!

The game against Penrith will go down in living memory as we took the last 9 wickets for just 17 runs to win by 1 run.

The bowling & fielding was our strength and we were lucky to have 2 outstanding wicketkeepers in Liam & Robert. Adam & Lars opened the bowling and always got us off to a good start, Daniel & Will captured wickets when we needed them the most. Luke was our most improved bowler and James & Pat bowled economically and put pressure on the opposition batsmen. Our fielding was always terrific with Nicky, Daniel

& Pat leading the way and superb catches through the season by Nicky, James, Pat, Dylan & Lars.

Everyone played a good innings in one game or another, putting them together was sometimes indifferent. The standout innings were Will's brilliant 83 against Hornsby, Lars clever 50 against Gordon, Liam's 42 against Hornsby, Daniel's 39no against Penrith. Adam's 38 against Gordon and James 39 against Hornsby. Beau, Pat, Graeme & Robert played very important innings throughout the season.

Graeme did a good job as captain, he led from the front, gave everyone an opportunity and had the support of his teammates. Many thanks to Dylan for filling in when we needed him.

It was great to see Bob, our coach, finish his junior coaching career on such a high note. Bob has put his skill, time & patience into many junior players over the years and his efforts are very highly thought of, now all he has to do is concentrate on backing winners! Thank you Bob.

Thanks to our parents who helped with scoring, umpiring, afternoon teas and especially for their support of our team. It has been a most enjoyable and rewarding experience.

To the boys who leave junior cricket, I wish you every success in your personal and sporting endeavours and hope that you enjoy happy and healthy lives. To the boys with another U16 season to come, see you on the cricket field.

Terry Chalmers. Manager

MATCH RESULTS

- Round 1: Sutherland 7/127 defeated Gordon 121 B.Creevey 25 P.Dalling 21no L.Jensen 3/14 A.Logan 2/10 D.Fenning 2/11
- Round 2: Sutherland 8/234 defeated Hornsby 192 W.Rolfe 83 L.Rossenrode 42 G.Girdler 3/15 J.Bills 2/10 P.Dalling 2/25
- Round 3: Sutherland 113 defeated Penrith 112 D.Fenning 39no & 2/0 L.Jensen 3/18 L.Annesley 2/2 B.Creevey 2/7
- Round 4: Sutherland 202 defeated Gordon 168 L.Jensen 50 A.Logan 38 P.Dalling 26 G.Girdler 25 D.Fenning 4/7 W.Rolfe 4/15
- Round 5: Sutherland 10/162 defeated Hornsby 10/160 J.Bills 39 A.Logan 21 W.Rolfe 5/27

Round 6: Washed out.

PRESIDENTS U 14



Back Row:	Anthony Davis,	David Brooker,	Alex Fragiadakis,	Mitchell Bowmer, Peter	63
	Alevizos, Joe Tr	eacy (Coach).			
		and francis.	see a second to the second to the	CONCRETE NO DEPARTMENTS	

Front Row: James Treacy, Matt Christison, Joel Leffler, Ryan Mulally, Dimitri Alevizos, Graham Hinds, Rhys Estall.

Congratulations boys – winners of the Presidents 14's competition. The team lost only 1 game during the competition and had some very close and exciting finishes. The team had some problems early but settled into becoming a very talented, committed group who put in 100% effort at training and the games.

Our first game was a chance for everyone to show their skills. We bowled the opposition out in 54 overs and then passed their score with the loss of only 5 wickets. Star of the day was Ryan- Captain of the side – with 3 wickets and 68 runs.

The second game was much easier with Hornsby scoring 115 runs, which we passed in the 43rd over. Graham was the star with the bat and Anthony Davis with the ball.

Game three against Penrith – up there. The boys bowled superbly, with Penrith all out for only 120 runs. Anthony and Joel taking 3 wickets each and Mitchell getting 3 stumpings. At 4/95 the target looked easy. A couple of wickets later and we were in trouble. Peter got us out of a spot with a well compiled 46 runs after Anthony got us off to a great start with 44.

We travelled to Gordon and they scored 171 - Graham the star with the ball taking 4/21. Mitchell taking another 3 catches. Ryan, Graham & Peter steadied the ship for a while but we were all out in the 45th over. Matt and Alex showed great maturity at the end of our innings playing out 3 maiden overs trying to not get out, well done guys.

Our game against Hornsby and they scored 139 with Dave 3/17 and Jared 4/21 the stars with the ball. We passed Hornsby's score in the 55th over, another nail biter. Graham (45) another great score helped along by James, Ryan and Dave.

We saw some excellent cricket from this team, most of whom would easily fit into the shield side. They have become good buddies and will stay friends for a long time.

To Joe Treacy, who put his hand up again to train the boys. Thank you. You have a fantastic record with Presidents' team. You kept the boys on track every game, panicked when it was necessary and kept calm when we were in tight situations.

To Steve Mulally - always on hand to help with the team thank you. I know Joe appreciates your input and knowledge.

To Russell Christison - our scorer - thanks Russell - you did a great job.

To the players - congratulations boys - it has been an absolute pleasure to be associated with such a fine group of young men. Good luck with your cricket - you are a credit to your parents and to Sutherland Cricket and it was my pleasure to be the Manager of this side.

Karen Bowmer.

Manager

MATCH RESULTS

Round 1:	Sutherland 5/153 defeated Gordon 151
	R. Mulally 68 not out, A.Davis 14, M. Bowmer 19
	D.Brooker 2/8, A Fragiadakis 2/24, R. Mulally 3/21, A. Davis 2/20

- Round 2: Sutherland 8/117 G. Hinds 37. J.Treacy 23 A.Davis 3/24
- Sutherland 7/124 defeated Penrith 120 Round 3: A Davis 44, P. Alevizos 46x A.Davis 3/34, J. Leffler 3/24, M.Bowmer 3 stumpings
- Sutherland 145 lost to Gordon 171 Round 4: G. Hinds 43, P.Alevizos 38 G.Hinds 4/21, P.Alevizos 2/13, D.Brooker 2/17 M.Bowmer 3 catches
- Sutherland 5/140 defeated Hornsby 139 Round 5: G. Hinds 45, J.Traecy 19, D. Brooker 19 J.Roy 4/21, D.Brooker 3/17
- Round 6: washed out.

PRESIDENTS U12



Back Row: Paul Burg (Coach), Matthew Burg, Alex Wall, Justin McHugh, Andrew Herne, Michael Dumbrell, Anthony Chapman (Manager).

Front Row: Liam Roberts, Patrick Chapman, William Del Din, David McMahon, Adam Smith, Dean Smith. (Absent: Luke Armour)

This was always going to be a testing year for the boys considering 5 of the 12 players were coming from the under 11age bracket to "make up the numbers". Despite the boys finding it hard work on the field each and every one of them has come out of this season as a better player, more mature and confident but just as importantly they love their cricket more than ever. Often they found themselves playing against opponents of far greater ability than they had seen before and sometimes despite being outclassed they never gave in.

Our first game against Gordon saw us fairly comprehensively beaten but it was pleasing that we batted out our 50 overs.

Our second game was played in extremely hot conditions at Castle Hill against Hornsby. Despite the heat we bowled very well especially our 4 quick bowlers who kept a tight lid on the Hornsby score. With 4 of the boys suffering from heat stroke we put in a courageous effort with the bat. The season highlight was the 52 by Luke Armour off only 14 scoring shots with 9 fours and 2 sixes! He formed a great partnership with Matt Burg of 45 to give us a real chance. Alas it was not to be.

The third game at Penrith was again very hot and we started poorly with the only batting highlight being Luke again for a blazing 33 off 12 scoring shots. Our bowling was the highlight with our newly formed spin team of Matt Burg and William Del Din doing an outstanding job of bowling 20 overs for 49 runs and taking 3 wickets (plus a run out from Penrith's frustration) saw us in with a chance right to the end.

Round Four was back at home against Gordon and our bowlers did a great job in bowling them out for 150. Andrew Herne taking 3/15 off 8 overs and once again our spinners Matt and William bowled very tidily taking 3/40 and 2/22 off 10 overs each respectively. Unfortunately our batting could not get us home.

Our fifth game was against Hornsby. Some outstanding bowling by Luke Armour 3/17, Michael Dumbrell 4/12 and William 2/25 saw us have Hornsby all out for 123. Our openers William and Patrick Chapman set us up nicely pushing the score along steadily to 34 without loss before William was out for 17. Patrick followed the coach's instructions and batted for 30 overs before finally out for 17. Unfortunately only Dean with 14 made double figures and we were all out for 93 when after such great bowling, fielding and opening batting we should have won.

Special thanks must go to all the parents of the boys who all chipped in to make the management of the team very easy and a pleasure. Our coach Paul Burg who was "recruited" late into the scene did a fantastic job and the time, effort and patience he put in is greatly appreciated by the parents and all the boys. Thanks so much Paul !!

I would also like to thank Allan Morgan and his wife Helen for co-coordinating the representative administration so well, it makes our jobs so much easier.

To the boys, your sense of sportsmanship and behavior were outstanding and it has been a privilege to know you all.

Anthony Chapman. Manager

Match Results

Round 1:	Sutherland 89 lost to Gordon 2/92
Round 2:	Sutherland 152 lost to Hornsby 6/190
Round 3:	Sutherland 100 lost to Penrith 4/106
Round4:	Sutherland 83 lost to Gordon All out 150
Round 5:	Sutherland 93 lost to Hornsby All out 123

PART V - HISTORICAL/ARCHIVAL DATA.

Recognition of those who have served Junior cricket in the Shire in earlier years.

The Association is proud of its history and the efforts of those past officials who have contributed to the success of its endeavours. Regrettably, due to costs it has become necessary to delete the record of all Past Official Office Bearers from the Annual Record as shown in the Year Book. Readers wishing to acquaint themselves with the names of those who have contributed over the years are advised to refer to the 40th Anniversary edition, (the 1996/97 Year Book) for a full listing of all such members to that time and each annual edition thereafter.

LIFE MEMBERS

	J. MOODIE	1963	
	J. DALY	1965	
	R. KING	1965	
	W. CROUCHER	1965	
	M. EDSON	1968	
	G. THOMSON	1968	
	F. MALBON	1969	
	N. DAVIES	1971	
	J. RUTTY	1973	
	R. HILDITCH	1973	
	K. PRENDERGAST	1974	
	I DUTTY (Mrs.)	1074	
	F. PATTINSON	1974	
	J. BANNON	1975	
		1976	
	K. WHATLEY D. CLARK J. LYNCH	1977	
	D. CLARK	1981	
	J. LYNCH	1981	
	K. GARDNER	1985	
	S. STEED	1985	
	D. MASTERS	1987	
	B. QUINN	1989	
٠.	W. LAWLER	1990	
	R. BRENNAN	1993	
	I. CHALMERS	1995	
	H. PETERS	1997	
	P. SCHOFIELD	1999	
	V. ROUTH	2002	
	R. WADDELL	2002	
	CONVERSION CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR		

Deceased

HONOUR ROLL

CLUB CHAMPIONS

BERTSHELL TROPHY

1965/66	JANNALI
1966/67	JANNALI
1967/68	CRONULLA RSL
1968/69	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1969/70	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1970/71	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1971/72	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1972/73	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1973/74	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1974/75	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1975/76	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1976/77	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1977/78	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1978/79	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1979/80	COMO
1980/81	ST PATRICKS
1981/82	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1982/83	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1983/84	GYMEA BAY
1984/85	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1985/86	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1986/87	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1987/88	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1988/89	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1989/90	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1990/91	GYMEA BAY
1991/92	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1992/93	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1993/94	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1994/95	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1995/96	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1996/97	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1997/98	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1998/99	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1999/00	COMOJANNALI
2000/01	ENGADINE DRAGONS
2001/02	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
2002/03	CARINGBAH SPORTS

CRICKETER OF THE YEAR

THE JOHN WOODHOUSE MEMORIAL TROPHY

SEASON	PLAYER	CLUB
1961/62	R.TOZER	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1962/63	M. KING	ST PATRICKS
1963/64	B. DAVISON	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1964/65	B. McMANUS	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1965/66	G. BAILEY	JANNALI
1966/67	P. VENN	ST PATRICKS
1967/68	M. RAY	CARINGBAH DELASALLE
1968/69	P. HART	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1969/70	J. DYSON	JANNALI
1970/71	S. ANDERSON	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1971/72	A. HILDITCH	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1972/73	B. HANDLEY	GYMEA BAY
1973/74	B. HANDLEY	GYMEA BAY
1974/75	K. HUDSON	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1975/76	G. WHATLEY	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1976/77	P. BISHELL	GYMEA BAY
1977/78	K. RYNNE	CARINGBAH DELASALLE
1978/79	G. ARNOLD	GYMEA BAY
1979/80	M. GARDNER	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1980/81	J. STEAD	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1981/82	K.TUITE	ST PATRICKS
1982/83	A. QUINN	ST PATRICKS
1983/84	M. CONDON	JANNALI
1984/85	J.SMITH	COMO
1985/86	C. PARSONS	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1986/87	D. WALLIS	ST PATRICKS
1987/88	S. DUFF	ST PATRICKS
1988/89	N. MORANDO	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1989/90	M. O'BRIEN	ST JOHN BOSCO
1990/91	C. HARAN	ST JOHN BOSCO
1991/92	J. HOLLEY	GYMEA BAY
1992/93	M. BRADLEY	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1993/94	C. LAKE	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1994/95	B. WICKS	COMO JANNALI
1995/96	D. REYNOLDS	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1996/97	D. MITCHELL	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1997/98	L. DUDMAN	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1998/99	J. DRINKWATER	ILLAWONG
1999/00	M. HUGHSTON	CARINGBAH SPORTS
2000/01	R. SHEPHERD	ENGADINE DRAGONS
2001/02	C. WILLIAMS	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
2002/03	J. DAVIS	ENGADINE DRAGONS

PREMIERSHIP WINNERS - UNDER 16 AGE GROUP from 1997/98 onwards.

SEASON	16A	16B	16C	<u>16D</u>	
1997/98	C'bah Sports	Como/Jannali	Illawong	C'bah Sports	
1998/99	C'bah Dis	Miranda	C'bah Sports		
1999/00	C'bah Sports	Miranda	Engadine	Como/Jannali	
2000/01	Miranda	Sylvania	Aquinas	Illawong Menai	
2001/02	Engadine	Illawong Menai	St John Bosco	C'Bah Sports	
2002/03	Engadine	St. Patricks	Como Jannali		

PREMIERSHIP WINNERS - UNDER 14 AGE GROUP from 1997/98 onwards.

SEASON	14A	14B	14C	14D	14E
1997/98	C'bah Sports	C'bah Sports	Miranda	St. Patricks	
1998/99	Miranda	St.John Bosco	Illawong	St.Patricks	Gymea
1999/00	Engadine	Illawong	Illawong 3	Como/Jannali	Illawong
2000/01	Como Jannali	Miranda	Caringbah DLS	Engadine	C'bah Sports
2001/02	C'Bah Sports	St John Bosco	Miranda	Gymea Bay	Engadine
2002/03	Illawong Menai	Miranda	Miranda	St. Patricks	

Note: It has become necessary to delete the record of all Premiership Winners from the Annual Record as shown in the Year Book. Readers wishing to acquaint themselves with the names of Premiership Winners prior to 1997/98 are advised to refer to the 40th Anniversary edition. (1996/97 Year Book).

65

PREMIERSHIP WINNERS - UNDER 12 AGE GROUP from 1997/98 onwards.

SEASON	12A	12B	12C	12D	12E	12F	12G
1997/98	Sylvania	St.Patricks	Sylvania	St. Patricks	Illawong	C'bah Sports	10000
1998/99	Illawong	Gymea	Illawong	St.J.Bosco	Illawong	8	
1999/00	Illawong	Aquinas	C'nullaSeagulls	Miranda	Engadine	Illawong	Illawong
2000/01	IllawongMenai	Aquinas	Miranda	Sylvania	Aquinas	C'bah Sports	Contraction of the
2001/02	Sylvania	Aquinas	Sylvania	C'Bah Sports	St John Bosco		
2002/03	Engadine	IllawongMenai	Sylvania	C'Bah Sports			

PREMIERSHIP WINNERS - UNDER 10 AGE GROUP from 1997/98 onwards.

SEASON	10A	10B	10C	10D	10E	10F
1997/98	Illawong	C'bah Sports	St.John Bosco	St. Patricks	Illawong	
1998/99	Illawong	Illawong	Engadine	Illawong	Engadine	
1999/00	Sylvania	St.JohnBosco	St. Patricks	ComoJannali	Illawong	C'bah Sports
2000/01	Engadine	ComoJannali	ComoJannali	C'bah Sports		
2001/02	C'Bah Sports	Loftus	Sylvania	Barden Ridge DeLaSalle	Heathcote	
2002/03	St.John Bosco	Engadine	St.John Bosco			

Note: It has become necessary to delete the record of all Premiership Winners from the Annual Record as shown in the Year Book. Readers wishing to acquaint themselves with the names of Premiership Winners prior to 1997/98 are advised to refer to the 40th Anniversary edition. (1996/97 Year Book).

CLAIMS PROCEDURE

Player Accident Cover:

- If you suffer an injury, whilst participating in cricket, and need to make a claim, please contact Worldwide Sports Insurance within 30 days of the injury. A Claim Pack with all the required documents and information shall be sent to you.
- The completed claim form must be returned to WWSI within 120 days of the injury.
- Treatment for the injury can continue over a year from the date of the injury.
- The Medicare "Gap" is not covered by the Sportscover policy. Covering the Medicare Gap is against the law. Any item which has a Medicare number is not covered by the policy. Theatre fees, Specialist fees and X-Rays are also not covered by the policy.

Public Liability/ Professional Indemnity Cover:

- If an accident occurs involving any Association member which may lead to a claim, you must notify us immediately in writing.
- It is important that nobody admits fault or takes any action, no matter what the details of the incident are.
- Record the details (ie time, date, description of incident and witnesses) of the incident and then forward the details to WWSI in writing.

Contact Details (to request a claim form):

- <u>Phone:</u> <u>Worldwide Sports Insurance</u> Ph: (02) 9635 4355 (9am – 5pm) Fax: (02) 9635 4377 <u>Claims Department</u> Ph: (03) 9721 4747
- Internet/ E- mail: www.sportscover.com phil.scorer@wwsi.com.au

Note: A claim form can be requested via the internet direct from Sportscover.



